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Characteristics of GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Yu Tak
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the
Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in
all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
LR E R
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Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
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The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited
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Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
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Hong Kong
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Hong Kong
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
P HE

for the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —F— \F+-H=4+—HIFE

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—EpEF TR ZEAF ZFtF ZB-NF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TR

RESULTS ES

Revenue WA 499,375 174,741 104,367 110,174 97,225
Loss before income tax BB R R E1E (26,611) (32,991) (45,865) (10,500) (23,210)
Income tax expense TS i (559) (1,566) (390) (371) (41)
Loss for the year FAEIE (27,170) (34,557) (46,255) (10,871) (23,251)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHERE

Total assets BEMRT 274,874 196,023 149,790 112,445 150,833
Total liabilities SRt (111,082) (71,966) (74,339) (45,906) (42,255)
Total equity g it 163,792 124,057 75,451 66,539 108,578
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREHE

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Yu Tak
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), it is my
pleasure to present the Annual Report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

The Group continued to rationalize its existing IT products and
services businesses. In the last quarter of 2018, the Group's
operations in Singapore, which were no longer justified in terms
of cost and business scale, were disposed of. This, adding to
a series of reorganization in the last couple of years, led to a
decline of turnover contributed by the segment in 2018. While
evidences showed that the existing IT services businesses
were losing its competition in the market, the Group may
further trim down the operations.

Core businesses of the Group had been switching to the
sales of gold and jewellery. In March 2018, the Group had
successfully raised equity funds of HK$57 million (net of
all relevant expenses) by Rights Issue. In August 2018, the
Group had further committed an investment of not less than
RMB12 million in a joint venture in PRC. The main objective
of the move was to bring in talents who had very successful
experiences and sound reputations in the market. According to
the plan, the Group’s sales of gold and jewellery businesses
would be conducted through the joint venture in the future.
While the joint venture was still in the startup stage at the
end of 2018, more progress in development of its marketing
channels and franchise businesses would be reported in 2019.

The Management believed that decisive investments for
enlarging the Group's share in the market are essential. Growth
of businesses by building and extending the Group’s franchise
network in the PRC remained the major strategy of the Group.
With the right people joined and correct marketing strategies,
the management was confident that an improvement in
businesses would become more obvious in 2019.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERE®E

APPRECIATION

On behalf of all Board members, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my gratitude to the Shareholders and
business partners of the Group for their continued supports and
trust during the past years, and my most sincere appreciation
to the Directors, management and staff at all levels for their
dedication, hard works and contributions to the Group.

Chong Yu Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBNWmR DM

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s loss
attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to
HK$23,668,000 (2017: HK$10,387,000).

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018
amounted to HK$97,225,000 (2017: HK$110,174,000).

The sales of gold and jewellery products and franchise income
contributed to HK$16,559,000 of the Group’s revenue during
the year (2017: HK$20,997,000). The sales of enterprise
software products dropped by 4% to HK$25,950,000 (2017:
HK$26,948,000). Revenue on systems integration business
dropped by 67% to HK$4,188,000 (2017: HK$12,631,000) while
revenue on professional services business increased by 2% to
HK$50,528,000 (2017: HK$49,598,000).

OPERATION REVIEW

According to The National Bureau of Statistics of China, the
GDP of China was 6.6% in 2018 that it was the slowest pace
since 1990. Gold jewellery demand grew by 3% in 2018 to a
three-year high of 672.5 tons although a decline in the fourth
quarter was observed as the result of U.S.-China trade friction,
a spike in gold prices and a slowdown in economic growth.

In March 2018, the Group had successfully raised equity funds
of HK$57 million (net of all relevant expenses) by rights issue.
While a portion had been applied to support daily operations,
the Group had converted the newly raised funds into gold at
relatively low prices. In August 2018, the Group had further
committed an investment of not less than RMB12 million in
a joint venture in PRC. The joint venture, with experienced
team members who were widely recognised in the market,
was designated to develop and expand the sales of gold
and jewellery businesses in PRC. The joint venture was still
in the start up stage at the end of 2018. More progresses
in development of its marketing channels and franchise
businesses would be reported in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBNWR TN

The Group's sales of gold jewellery businesses for 2018
amounted to HK$16 million, a contraction of 20% compared
with that for 2017. It contributed to the strategic reorganisation
of the business segment in the second half year following
the formation of the joint venture. Although 24-carat gold still
dominated the market, its market share was fast losing, notably
in the first- and second-tier cities. It was observed that retailers
were shifting their products to incorporate more 18-carat,
22-carat and 3D hard products. While the Group remained rely
on sales of 24-carat gold products, benefits brought by growth
in gold jewellery demand in 2018 was limited.

For the IT service segment, the management had disposed its
Singapore operations in late 2018, which were not justified in
terms of cost and business scale. The turnover contributed to
the segment further declined in 2018 subsequent to a series of
divestment in the last couple of years. The Group strategically
trimmed down its IT services businesses which were losing its
competition in the market.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group remained in a strong
financial position with cash and bank balances of HK$27,131,000
(2017: HK$25,675,000).

The Group monitored its capital structure using the gearing ratio
which is net debt divided by total equity. For this purpose, the
Group defined net debt as debt, which comprises long-term and
short-term borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total
equity comprised equity attributable to owners of the Company
and non-controlling interests stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The gearing ratio is not
presented, as the net debt was zero (2017: zero).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's issued shares were
1,782,690,000 shares (2017: 1,188,460,000 shares).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBNWmR DM

INVESTMENT, MATERIAL ACQUISITION
OR DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group disposed
of two subsidiaries with total consideration of HK$2,480,000,
resulting in net gain on disposal of subsidiaries amounting to
HK$87,000.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
other investment and material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2018.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.

SEGMENTAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the turnover of the
Jewellery Product segment and the IT Products and Services
segments amounted to HK$16,559,000 (2017: HK$20,997,000)
and HK$80,666,000 (2017: HK$89,177,000) respectively.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2018, the number of employees of the
Group was 276 (2017: 301). Remuneration is determined by
reference to market terms and the performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee. Year-end bonus
based on individual performance will be paid to employees as
recognition of and reward for their contributions.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Gold prices started in 2019 at USD1,282, and climbed to
USD1,346 on 20 February 2019. While it was generally believed
that growth of United States would be likely slowing down in
2019 and the interest rate hikes would be also put at a halt,
gold prices were buoyed by reversing real interest rate and
accelerating inflation. The change in price expectations would
probably induce new consumer demand for the gold jewellery
in 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBNWR TN

China jewellery market is responsive to changing consumer
behavior. Rather than relying on traditional consumers who
buy jewellery purely for its gold content, market players are
undertaking extensive market researches to get to know their
customers tastes and appetites for offering a more diverse
product mix, designing more appealing jewellery and optimising
sales channels to modern consumers. In confrontation of a
highly competitive market, recruiting the right people will be the
key to success of the Group.

The new joint venture of the Group will bring in refresh talents
to the Group’s sales of gold jewellery businesses. It will focus
on the evolving middle class in China who is contributing to a
shift in the consumer landscape. In recent years, gold jewellery
has faced stiff competition from other items of jewellery and
luxury goods in Tier 1 and Tier 2 cities. Competition is however
not as fierce in Tier 3 and Tier 4 cities where consumers
in these regions prefer high carat gold jewellery for wealth
preservation purposes. The Group will continue to source and
develop innovative and exclusive products, in pure gold or gold
with other jewellery materials, to meet the changing consumer
demand and also strategically extend franchise network for
distribution of gold products in Tier 3 and Tier 4 cities.

For the IT Products and Services segment, the management
believes that existing businesses may further scale down
in 2019. Although the focus of the Group has been shifting
to the sales of gold jewellery segment, the Group remains
interested in other business opportunities including IT and on-
line businesses. The Group will aggressively look for business
opportunities which have synergies with its core businesses.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TERERME

(1)

(2)

12

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The
Directors believe that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of
the Company and for safeguarding the shareholders’
interests and the Company’s assets.

The Company’'s code of corporate governance practices
was adopted with reference to the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”)
contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules to
ensure that the Group's business activities and decision-
making processes are regulated in a proper and prudent
manner. The Company has compiled with the Corporate
Governance Code set out in the Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2018
except where otherwise stated.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the strategic
directions, management, business and financial
performance of the Group.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day operational
responsibilities of the Group's business to the executive
management team under the leadership of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and various Board committees.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors:
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping
Ms. LI Xia

Mr. CHEN Yin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. LAM Tin Faat

Ms. ZHAO Xiaxia

Ms. NA Xin
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TRERBME

(2)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting

The Board meets at least four times a year to review
financial and operating performance and discuss the

(2)

EEe )
EEees

EXe8FRLRTHREHE - Niestht
BRheEBERR  YARNAEEZTRR

Group's direction and strategy. Details of the attendance FH c EEeHFEeEEBNT
of the Board of Directors are as follows:

18 Mar 10 May 9 Jul 2 Aug 10 Aug 9 Nov 31 Dec
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
“E-N\F ZB-N\F ZB-N\f ZB-N\F -\ ZB-N\Ff ZEBE-N\F
=A+N\H =HBE+H +tARAH NA=ZH NB+H +—BANB +=ZB=1-H
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping #f&F5E4E v/ v v v v v v
Ms. LI Xia TELL v v/ v/ v/ v/ v/ v/
Mr. CHEN Yin PR E v v v v v v v
Mr. LAM Tin Faat MKREE S E v v v v/ 4 v/ v/
Ms. LU Haina BEG 2zt v/ v NATER NATER NATER NATER NATER
Ms. NA Xin Fiiean v v v/ v/ v/ v/ v/
Ms. ZHAO Xiaxia HEEXT NATEA NATER NATEA v v v/ v

Directors are given notice of regular Board meetings of
at least 14 days in advance. The Directors will receive
details of agenda with comprehensive reports on the
management’s strategic plans, updates by business unit
heads on their lines of business, financial objectives,
plans and actions at least 3 days before a Board meeting.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary
who is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are complied with and advises the Board on corporate
governance and compliance matters.

The executive Directors meet every two weeks to review
company business pipeline, receivables, and business
unit performance. Senior management of the Company
(the “Senior Management”) meets with Business Unit
Management every week to review project status, and
business unit issues.

The Company has undertaken several meetings, first
with Senior Management, second with the audit
committee, and subsequently with the Board, to discuss
and review the Group's practice on corporate governance
and make specific checks on the Group’'s compliance
via a compliance matrix in accordance to the criteria set
forth by the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company Secretary has assisted the chairman of the
Board in preparing the agenda for each meeting and the
minutes of such meetings are kept by the Company’s
company secretary or other duly authorised person. All
minutes are open for inspection by any Director on reasonable
notice. Draft(s) and final version of the minutes are sent to
Directors for comment and records, respectively.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independence of Directors

All the Directors do not have any financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship with each
other.

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations
of independence were received from each of the
Company's independent Non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and all
independent non-executive directors are considered to
be independent.

Directors’ Training

Directors must keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities. Every newly appointed Director
should receive induction and subsequent briefing and
professional development.

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the Code Provisions (which is
effective from 1 April 2012), Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the period, all Directors have participated
in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by way of reading materials relevant to the
Company's business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities, including but not limited to the changes
in respect of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622) and latest developments in connected
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.

Mr. Lam Tin Faat, as the chairman of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee also attended a number of seminars/courses
in relation to continuous professional developments
organized by The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants during the year in 2018.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors’ Liability Insurance

Appropriate liability insurance, the coverage of which
is reviewed annually, has been arranged to indemnify
the Directors’ risk exposure arising out of corporate
activities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Pursuant to Code A.2.1 of the Code Provisions, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual, so that there is a clear division of
responsibilities between the management of the Board
and the day-to-day management of the Company's
business to ensure a balance of power and authority.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
was in compliance with the aforesaid Code Provisions.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 11 August
2000. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Audit Committee’s principal duties are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group.

The revised terms of reference of Audit Committee in
accordance with Rules 5.05 (2) and 5.28 to 5.29 and
Code C3 of the Code Provisions of the GEM Listing
Rules was adopted on the Board Meeting held on 31
December 2018.

The members of Audit Committee is currently comprised
Mr. Lam Tin Faat, Ms. Na Xin and Ms. Zhao Xiaxia, all
of whom are independent Non-executive Directors. Mr.
Lam Tin Faat is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee meets four times a year to review
with senior management and at least twice a year with
the Company's auditor for the Company’s audit findings,
accounting policies and standards, changes of accounting
rules (if any), compliance with listing rules, internal and
audit control, and budget and cash flow forecast.

The Group's unaudited quarterly and interim results
and audited annual results during the year ended 31
December 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, who is of the opinion that such statements
comply with the applicable accounting standards and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

The summary of work of the audit committee during the
period is as follows:—

- met with the external auditor, reviewed and made
recommendations for the Board's approval on
the annual, interim and quarterly reports of the
Company;

- reviewed and approved audit fee;

- recommended the re-appointment of Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditor, subject to
the Shareholders’ approval at the annual general
meeting;

- reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems; and

- reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function.
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Details of the attendance of members at Audit Committee EHEZECKERFEEZ IEHBNOT -
meeting are as follows:
19 Mar 2018 10 May 2018 10 Aug 2018 9 Nov 2018
—B-N\F —E-N\F —E-N\F —B-N\F
=AthH EATH NATH +—ANnHE
Mr. LAM Tin Faat MRELE v/ v v v
Ms. LU Haina i3t v v v v
Ms. NA Xin MBI L L 4 4 N/ATiE A N/AZNE A
Ms. Zhao Xiaxia HEEL N/ATNE A N/ATNE A 4 4

(5)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on
10 May 2005. The written terms of reference of the
remuneration committee are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration
Committee is to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for all directors and
senior management’s remuneration.

The revised terms of reference of remuneration committee
in accordance with Code B.1.2 of the Code Provisions
of the GEM Listing Rules was adopted on the Board
meeting held on 21 March 2012.

The members of Remuneration Committee is currently
comprised Mr. Lam Tin Faat and Ms. Na Xin, both are
independent Non-executive Directors, and Ms. Li Xia
who is an executive Director, Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee should hold at least
one regular meeting in a year. During the year under
review, the members of Remuneration Committee, Mr.
Lam Tin Faat, Ms. Li Xia and Ms. Na Xin attended the
Remuneration Committee Meeting on 9 November 2018.

The summary of work of the remuneration committee
during the period is as follows:—

- reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and senior management of the Company; and

- reviewed and recommended to the Board on the
Directors’ fees of independent non-executive
Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 March
2012. The written terms of reference of the nomination
committee are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The Nomination Committee is
to assist the Board to deal with matters in relation to
appointment of members of the Board.

The written terms of reference of nomination committee
in accordance with Code A.5.2 of the Code Provisions
of the GEM Listing Rules was adopted on the Board
meeting held on 21 March 2012.

The members of Nomination Committee is currently
comprised Mr. Lam Tin Faat and Ms. Na Xin, both are
independent Non-executive Directors, and Ms. Li Xia
who is an executive Director, Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee should hold at least one
regular meeting in a year. During the year under review,
the members of Nomination Committee, Mr. Lam Tin
Faat, Ms. Li Xia and Ms. Na Xin attended the Nomination
Committee Meeting on 9 November 2018.

The summary of work of the nomination committee
during the period is as follows:—

- reviewed the existing Board’s structure, size and
composition; and

- reviewed and assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board regularly to ensure
that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the
business of the Company. Where vacancies on the
Board exist, the Nomination Committee will carry out
the selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates,
the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.
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(6) NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(7)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which
sets out the approach to achieve a sustainable and
balanced development of the Company and also to
enhance the quality of performance of the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives as stated in the above. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
six directors. Three of the directors are independent
non-executive directors and independent of management,
thereby promoting critical review and control of the
management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of
professional background, gender and skills.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. Our Company Secretary is currently
jointly seated by Mr. Fok Wai Man and Mr. Chan Hoi
Keung Terence who were appointed on 9 July 2018 and
on 12 November 2018 respectively. The Company Secretary
is responsible for facilitating the process of implementing
the Board’s decision, as well as communications between
the members of the Board and the management team of
the Company, and advising the Board and its committees
on all governance matters.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirms that
they have complied with the required standard of dealings
and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors adopted by the Company throughout the
twelve months ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the Company’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018 which reflect true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group
and in compliance with relevant law and disclosure
provisions of the Listing Rules. The Board is responsible
for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other
inside information announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Group appointed Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
as the Group's external auditor. The statement by Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited regarding their reporting
responsibilities to the shareholders on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 51 to 56 of this
annual report.
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(10) AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration
for the provision of audit and non-audit services by the

(10) X BETEN <=
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auditors to the Group is as follows: e T
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Fees breakdown by accounting firms & HRRE:HEI{TEI S
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited B[R (BB 2RI SE A
HRATR
Annual audit services FEZERTG 790 820
Non-audit services rendered in RSB HRERME 2
relation to the Group's interim report IEZE RS 80 =
870 820
Other professional CPA firms At F S ST T
Annual audit services FEZERS 217 191
Total HEE 1,087 1,011

(11) RISK MANAGEMENT AND (11) EMREE R AP EEEE

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control system of the Group
and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing basis.
Such risk management and internal control systems are
designed for managing risk rather than eliminating the
risk of failure to achieve business objective, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

Management team of the Company has established
the Group’s Internal Control Policies and Guidance for
monitoring the internal control system.

The Board has delegated to the management team of
the Company the implementation of such internal control
systems as well as the review of relevant financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
procedures. Qualified personnels and individual business unit
heads of the Group maintain and monitor the compliance
of these internal control systems and procedures on an
ongoing basis and report variances to senior management.
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(12) INTERNAL CONTROL

Based on the assessment and review made by the Board
and senior management on the effectiveness of the internal
control system, the Audit Committee is satisfied that:

° the internal control and accounting systems of the
Group are designed to provide reasonable assurance
as to material assets of the Group are protected,
business risks attributable to the Group are identified
and monitored, material transactions are executed
in accordance with management’s authorisation and
the accounts are reliable for publication; and

° there is an ongoing process in place for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced
by the Group.

(13) COMMUNICATION WITH

22

SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS RIGHT

The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going
dialogue with the shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings or other general meetings to
communicate with the shareholders and encourage their
participation. The Company will ensure that there are
separate resolutions for separate issues proposed at the
general meetings.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and
effective investor communication policy and to update
investors on relevant information on the Group’s business
in a timely manner, subject to relevant regulatory
requirements.

A)  General Meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide a
good opportunity for communication between the
shareholders of the Company and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be
held in each year and at such time and place to be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
a special general meeting.
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(13) COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS RIGHT (continued)

A)

B)

C)

General Meetings (Continued)

The 2019 AGM is scheduled on Tuesday, 28 May
2019. A circular containing, among other matters,
further information relating to the 2019 AGM will
be despatched to the shareholders of the Company
together with this report in accordance with the Bye-
Laws, the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations.

Rights and Procedures for Shareholders to
Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 58 of the Bye-Laws, any one or
more shareholders of the Company holding as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the company secretary, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74 (3) of the Bye-Laws.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders of the Company have the right to put
enquiries to the Board. All such enquiries shall be
in writing and sent by post to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Board or the company secretary.
Shareholders may also make enquiries with the
Board at the general meetings of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERERME

(14) ATTENDANCE OF GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the
Chairman should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company and he should invite the chairmen of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and any other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG
Code, independent non-executive Director and other non-
executive Directors should attend the general meetings of
the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the annual general meeting of the Company was held on
4 June 2018, and all the then Directors had attended the
annual general meeting.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and the Shareholders, and investors. These include
answering questions through the general meetings, the publication
of annual, interim and quarterly reports, notices, announcements
and circulars on the Company’s website at http://www.hkjewelry.
net/ and meetings with investors and the Shareholders. News
update of the Group's business development and operation are
also available on the Company's website (http://www.hkjewelry.
net/).

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside
information, the Company has formulated and implemented its
guidelines, with an aim to ensure that the insiders abide by the
confidentially requirement and fulfil the disclosure obligation. The
guidelines includes, but not limited to, the procedures as follows:

o The Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information;

° The Group has stipulated policy on handling of rumours,
unintentional selective disclosure and waiver to the
disclosure of inside information, external communication
guidelines and compliance and reporting procedures.

° The Group authorised only the executive Directors and
company secretary for responding to external enquiries
about Group's affairs; and

° Dissemination of inside information of the Company shall
be conducted by publishing the relevant information on
the website of GEM and the Company, according to the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

There had been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the period.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RS- HERERHKRE

The Group complies with the Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Reporting Guide published by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“"HKEx ESG Guide”). The
main purpose of the report is to disclose the Groups current
management approach in social and environmental responsibility
as well as its vision for sustainable development strategies.

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group is principally engaged in development, sales and
implementation of enterprise software products, systems
integration services and design and sales of gold and jewellery
products and investment holding. Determined to establish a
sustainable business model, the Group aims to create positive
impacts for key stakeholder groups including shareholders,
employees, suppliers, customers and the community, etc., and
strike a balance between profit, planet and people.

The major environmental and social aspects of concern in
respect of the Group’s business include packaging materials
consumption, customer service and talent management, etc.
Spearheaded by the CEO, these environmental and social
aspects are measured and managed by various departments
including but not limited to finance, administration and the
operation departments.

While we are committed to bearing our share of social
responsibility as a responsible corporate citizen, we are devoted
to protecting employees’ rights, providing them training for
continuous development and creating a safe and healthy
workplace.

We believe ensuring stringent product quality control is the
foundation for success. In addition to complying with applicable
rules and regulations, the Group also maintains effective
supplier management by assessing suppliers’ environmental
and social performance. While our operations do not have any
significant impact on the environment and the society, we
strive to minimize any potential negative impacts.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HERERHKE

MATERIALITY ANALYSES

Subject Area
TEHE

BREEEMDN
Most material aspects in the subject area

EFRARENERE

Employment and Labour practices

Protect employees’ rights and welfares

Ensure employees’ occupation health and safety
Provide training and development

BEESLTER

RIS (R B ryi et B4R A

EREENBEREFERELZE

RfEI R

Operating practices

Ensure product and service quality

Maintain high Ethical Standard and observing local laws and

legislations
EEED

EREMMREEE

HFREREENETEMERER

Environmental protection

Minimize Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Observe environmental laws
Minimize packaging material consumption

BRI BERLBERBIN
BFRIRED
LREEDH

Social Community

R Ol f5 1t & 3R

Contribution to Community Development

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

Employees’ Rights and Welfares

Our policies on recruitment, remuneration, welfare, assessment
and promotion are established on the basis of relevant laws
and regulations. Employee welfares including sick leave, annual
leave, marriage leave, compassionate leave and parental leave
are provided according to legal requirements and related
guidelines. Computation of remuneration and compensation
are clearly communicated to employees during their induction
training. The Group has complied with all laws and regulations
related to employment including the Employment Ordinance in
Hong Kong; the Labour Law of the People’'s Republic of China
and the Labour Contract Law of the People’'s Republic of China.

During the year, the Group observed no incidents of
violations of any relevant labour laws and regulations related
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfares.

26 Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2018

EBRELTESR
B B BER

BARBHEBEIZLARGTHE - - |
Ao FHEMEEEK - WEREFZERNE@E
SHRHHETRA - BRAR - FR - BR - BR
ME LR o FHHMB N E T EEABLEIH
FEREEERET - AREETHEHEBER
FERIER - BREBAKEREDD (FEAR
HANBEBBZONFEARKNBELEHERE) °

FR - AEEREREARRFHIRRIE - B
WEA - THEE - BH - TERE - Sl
R R E B RE R AR S B AR
fi o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RS- HERERHKRE

As on 31 December 2018, most of the employees are located
in Mainland China. Workforce distributions are as follows:

Functional Profile

RERE 53 i

Age Profile
FR oM

2018
—2-N\F

BE-_Z—)\FE+ZA=1+—8  KEEAZH
TRRFEAM - ETHIMHIT

=
=

Gender Profile

H RS

2018
—E-)\F

Il Below 30 30-50 [ 50 Above M Senior Management SHREEAS W Male Female
/INFA305% 30-505% 50 A _E I Middle Management R #REIEA S £l g3
General Staff TEET

We place high importance on employees’ workplace and
motivation as they are pivotal to the Group’s long-term growth.
We provide equal opportunity for all employees and ensure
that they are not discriminated on gender, age, race, religion
and marital status etc. Procedures are established for annual
evaluation of employees’ performances based on merit and
experience, which becomes a reference for remuneration
review and promotion. Year-end bonus and appropriate
promotion opportunities are offered to employees with
outstanding performance. Responsible managers are required to
conduct assessment in a fair manner. Employees may express
their opinions or grievances regarding the assessment, position
transfer and promotion directly to the management or the
administrative department.

In addition, the Group encourages active communication among
employees for building a positive corporate culture. We organize
annual dinner and various festive activities which build stronger
employee relationships and enhance team cohesion within the
Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HERERHKE

Occupational Health and Safety

The Group’'s operations do not involve significant safety
risk. Nevertheless, we do not overlook the responsibility
to safeguard employees’ health and safety. In accordance
with the Labor Law of the People's Republic of China, the
Production Safety Law of the People’'s Republic of China and
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases, we have established various
management requirements relevant to occupational health and
safety. Appropriate liability insurance has been maintained for
all directors and employees to provide coverage to them for
risks associated with business operations of the Company. The
insurance coverage is reviewed annually to match job content
of employees. In 2018, the Group did not record any cases of
work-related fatalities or injuries, and was not aware of any
non-compliance with laws and regulations having a significant
impact relating to occupational health and safety.

For the business of jewellery products, we emphasize fire
prevention and anti-theft measures in offices and retail shops.
We highly value safety training of employees. We have a 'Safety
System for Sales Assistants’ that guides them how to better
the implementation of safety protection work. Meanwhile, the
Group organizes regular fire drills for all employees annually
to ensure they are familiar with appropriate ways of handling
fire accidents, protecting personal safety of customers and
employees themselves under emergency situations.

Training and Development

Talents are the key to corporate sustainable development
and the Group spares no effort in training its employees. We
arrange appropriate training for employees of all categories in
order to improve their knowledge and skills corresponding to
their respective duties, thereby improving the Group’s service
quality.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R HERERRE

All new employees are required to receive induction training
upon joining the Group, which helps them fully understand
the Group’s corporate culture and management standards and
their job duties. Senior employees are required to provide on-
the-spot instructions with reasonable arrangements to allow
mutual matching between new and senior employees, enabling
better adaptation of new employees to job requirements and
duties. In addition, department heads such as shop managers
coordinate with the human resources department to formulate
suitable training programs as required, based on employees’
development needs.

For training of the seniors, the Group strictly abides by the
Corporate Governance Code to provide orientation training to
any newly appointed directors. Training programs in relation to
continuous professional development are arranged to ensure
they are aware of their overall responsibilities, thereby leading
the Company on the path to development. During the year, the
Group provided trainings to all employees in the business of
jewellery products record.

The Group is committed to providing employees with a practical
development platform. Based on employees’ work performance,
promotion assessment is conducted by their supervisors
annually, after employees have worked for a full year. Then it is
reviewed by the administrative department and finally decided
by the Chairman of the Board. Employees promoted have to be
on probation until formally promoted after approval. For talented
employees with outstanding work performance, supervisors
can apply provisional assessment and recommend frog-leaping
promotion.
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RE - HERERHKE

OPERATING PRACTICES

Product and Service Quality

Products of the Group include jewellery as well as software
products and services for corporates. Health and safety
risks involved in these products and services are relatively
insignificant. We strictly abide by the laws and regulations
related to product quality, advertising, product labelling and
customer privacy, including the Product Quality Law of the
People's Republic of China, the Advertising Law of the People's
Republic of China and the Law of the People's Republic of
China on Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests. During
the year, there was no occurrence of any monetary or non-
monetary sanctions due to non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations.

Regarding the business of jewellery products, the Group has
set up '‘Regulation on Goods Management’ for strict control
of quality and quantity of products available for sale. Every
product is checked and accepted by shop managers after
checking quality and quantity of products, appropriate matching
of product labels and the relevant certificates. Meanwhile, as a
responsible business operator, we provide a series of after-sale
services including product repairing. Follow-up work is well-
managed when repairing of products is under processing to
ensure repair is completed in-time and the damage or defect is
addressed satisfactorily.

We highly value quality of customer services to satisfy
customers’ needs to the best of our ability. Upon receipt of any
complaint, we conduct inspection on problems offer remedies
as required in accordance with relevant regulations of the
Company. If customers show dissatisfaction towards results
of the investigation and our remedies, responsible staff are
required to report the incident to their supervisors for further
measures in order to satisfy customers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RS- HERERHKRE

Ethics, local laws and regulations

The Group upholds the highest standards of integrity in its
operations. Adhering to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in
Hong Kong and the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of
China, any corruption behavior is prohibited. Whistleblowing
mechanisms are established to encourage employees to
report any suspected case of bribery or illegal behavior to the
management. Follow-up investigations are promptly conducted.
Cases of corruption, if any, are immediately handed over to the
authorities. Personnel involved may face disciplinary actions,
including dismissal. Requirements on employees’ conduct have
been articulated through the employee handbook.

During the year, there were no reported cases of violation of
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group's operations do not involve production activities that
have significant impacts on the environment. Nevertheless, we
aware of the environmental impacts it may generate when we
conduct business.
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RE - HERERHKE

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Our major part of air emissions is generated from the vehicles
owned and operated by the Group. Fuel consumption of our
vehicles contributed to direct greenhouse gas emissions of 4.20
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e). In addition to fuel
used by vehicles, the Group also consumes electricity which
contributed to indirect greenhouse gas emissions, however,
the data of electricity consumption are not available as the
electricity fee of the entire building is handled by the property
management office. Going forward, we will aim to make
reasonable estimate for our share of consumption.

BEREHER
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Greenhouse Gas Emissions Unit 2018 2017
BERBHK By =ZE-N\F —E—+F
Direct Emission (Scope 1) EEHER(EE) tCO,e M_AtiEE 4.20 3.70
Environmental Laws BRREH
The Group strictly complies with relevant environmental laws ANEBEBKEETHRBEANEREAEZEE @ 248

and regulations in China such as the Environmental Protection
Law of the People’'s Republic of China, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Air Pollution and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution of Solid
Waste.

32 Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2018

A

REAREAMEREFREE) (FEARKME
RRISRIAE) R P EARKME E B REY))S
RERED ©



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RS- HERERHKRE

Packaging Material Consumption

The Group is conscious of the impacts of packaging materials
to the environment. Consumption of packaging materials
are closely monitored. Regular review of product packaging
material and designs are performed to minimize impacts to
the environment due to overpackaging and non-biodegradable
materials.

BEMEHERE

AEERIBRMHERENTE  TUEZEE
EMEDER  LERRBERBEMHRRE
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Unit 2018 2017
By —=2—)\F —E—+tF
Packaging material BEE
— Gift boxes —&s Pcs{@E 40,629 67,445
— Shopping bags —BYR Pesfd 42,900 57,540
SOCIAL COMMUNITY HE
Contribution to the Community EF iR

The Group contribute to the communities where its businesses
are located by offering job opportunities to local residents.
Employees are encouraged to get involved in community and
charity activities, spreading compassion within the Group and
in the community as well as supporting the society’'s well-being
and development.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities and other particulars of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
and financial position of the Group at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 57 to 176.

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: HK$Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 is set out in the “Financial Summary”,
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 5, pages 6 to 7 and pages 8 to 11
respectively of this Annual Report.

The Group is committed to enhancing governance, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the
environment and giving back to society in order to fulfill social
responsibility and achieve sustainable growth. The Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of
the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESTHRE

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 61 to 62 and note 29
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws, and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s shares.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping (Chairman)
Ms. LI Xia (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHEN Yin

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LAM Tin Faat

Ms. LU Haina (resigned on 9 July 2018)

Ms. NA Xin

Ms. ZHAO XiaXia (appointed on 9 July 2018)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRE

DIRECTORS (continued)

Pursuant Article 83(2) of the Bye-laws of the Company, the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. Pursuant to Article 84(2), any Director
appointed pursuant to Article 83(2) shall not be taken into
account in determining which particular Directors or the number
of Directors who are to retire by rotation.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Bye-laws of the Company, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that notwithstanding anything herein,
every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years. Mr. Lam Tin Faat, Mr. Chen Yin and Ms. Na Xin
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and Senior Management
are set out on pages 48 to 50.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESTHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
their associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ"), or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Rule 5.46
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing
Rules”), were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company

EERFETBRAEREQRAZR
7 HEROEESPERZERER

NP
RE

RZF-NF+A=1t—8  REAXAER
& RHERD([E5 R BRI ]) F35215&R
EGFEZERMME  IREBEFEBARIME
BRAB (B3P 1) GEMEE % E MR Bl ([ GEM LT
HAI)EE 4615 T AR R R BM - K
RABEEREBTHRABRBEZHMEALRA
REREEBEEZ B - AR RESFTE
BRERLORRIT

REATSREEI10BLEBERZITFE

Number of ordinary shares held

BRESERYE
Percentage of
the issued
Held by share capital
Beneficial Held controlled of the
Name of Director Owner by family corporation Total Company
EARAT
HEEAE 28T
ESgE BREBA HRIEEE izl e [ NEpad
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping ERYEE 17,630,000 - 804,157,697 821,787,697 46.10%
(Note 1)
(Hist1)
Ms. LI Xia FELL - - 804,157,697 804,157,697 45.11%
(Note 1)
(Hit1)
Mr. CHEN Yin BRELE - - 165,455,740 165,455,740 9.28%
(Note 2)
(Hiz£2)
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Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1)

2)

These shares were held by Sino Eminent Limited. Sino Eminent
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
is owned as to 25% by Ocean Expert Investments Limited and
75% by Shenzhen Yihua Jewelry Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Yihua”),
a company incorporated in the PRC which is held as to 80% by
Mr. Chong Yu Ping. Accordingly, Mr. Chong Yu Ping is deemed
to be interested in 804,157,697 shares held by Sino Eminent
Limited by virtue of Sino Eminent Limited being controlled
by Mr. Chong Yu Ping through his shareholding in Shenzhen
Yihua. Ocean Expert Investments Limited is a limited company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is wholly
owned by Ms. Li Xia. Ms. Li Xia is deemed to be interested in
804,157,697 shares held by Sino Eminent Limited by virtue of
Sino Eminent Limited being controlled by Ms. Li Xia through her
shareholding in Ocean Expert Investments Limited and through
her acting as the sole director of Sino Eminent Limited.

These shares were held by Flourish Zone Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is wholly-owned
by Mr. Chen Yin.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2018.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2018, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO shows that the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests and short positions in the issued
share capital of the Company.

FERR

RZZE-N\F+-A=+—H BRAQAER
EHELREGRAEIBCHRFEZETERRAMAA
& TIBRREMEARARARRZHETRA
hEAREERNORE -

Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued share capital
Capacity in which ordinary of the
Name of party Notes interests are held shares held Company
AT
) FiEERE  EBAR
BEELE B8 Kt  HEEZRNSH EBRYA =
China Yinsheng Finance Limited Note 1 Security interest 909,502,801 51.02%
FE R B R A A e REkER
Sino Eminent Limited Note 2 Beneficial owner 804,157,697 45.11%
ERFRAF M2 EBEmBEAA
Shenzhen Yihua Jewelry Co., Ltd Note 2 Interest in a controlled 804,157,697 45.11%
corporation
A TEERE B RN AR M2 MEXESAR 2B
Ocean Expert Investments Limited Note 2 Interest in a controlled 804,157,697 45.11%
corporation
HRREERAT a2 MEESAR 2B
Ms. LI Xia Note 2 Interest in a controlled 804,157,697 45.11%
corporation
FELT a2 MEXESAR 2B
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping Beneficial owner 17,630,000 0.99%
EnBEAA
Note 2 Interest in a controlled 804,157,697 45.11%
corporation
HETEE K2 RIEGIRF R
Total #8% 821,787,697 46.10%
Flourish Zone Limited Note 3 Beneficial owner 165,455,740 9.28%
BEHBRAR K3 EmEAA
Mr. CHEN Yin Note 3 Interest in a controlled 165,455,740 9.28%
corporation
RELE HfaF3 MEXESAR 2B
Mr. LIN Feifei Beneficial owner 146,415,076 8.21%
PRHERE S5 A ERHEEA
CK Hutchison Holdings Limited Note 4 Interest in controlled 143,233,151 8.03%

RIMTEXFERAR

corporations

EEZ S NP 5
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Notes:

(1) On 26 March 2018, (i) Sino Eminent Limited, (i) Ms. Zhuang
Rushan; and (iii) Flourish Zone Limited, have pledged
304,815,204, 50,136,000 and 63,000,000 shares of the Company
respectively in favour of China Yinsheng Finance Limited as
security for a loan facility provided by China Yinsheng Finance
Limited to Sino Eminent Limited (the “Loan”). In addition, Sino
Eminent Limited have pledged an additional 491,551,597 shares
of the Company, which was obtained by it after the completion
of the Rights Issue, in favour of China Yinsheng Finance Limited
as security for the Loan. Accordingly, China Yinsheng Finance
Limited has security interest in 909,502,801 shares of the
Company. Details of the abovementioned pledge of shares are
set out in the Company’s announcement dated 26 March 2018.

2) Sino Eminent Limited is a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, is owned as to 25% by Ocean Expert
Investments Limited and 75% by Shenzhen Yihua Jewelry Co.,
Ltd (“Shenzhen Yihua”), a company incorporated in the PRC
which is held as to approximately 80% by Mr. Chong Yu Ping.
Accordingly, Mr. Chong Yu Ping is deemed to be interested in
804,157,697 shares held by Sino Eminent Limited by virtue of
Sino Eminent Limited being controlled by Mr. Chong Yu Ping
through his shareholding in Shenzhen Yihua. Ocean Expert
Investments Limited is a limited company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands which is wholly owned by Ms. Li Xia. Ms.
Li Xia is deemed to be interested in 804,157,697 shares held by
Sino Eminent Limited by virtue of Sino Eminent Limited being
controlled by Ms. Li Xia through her shareholding in Ocean
Expert Investments Limited and through her acting as the sole
director of Sino Eminent Limited.

(3) Flourish Zone Limited is a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Yin. Accordingly,
Mr. Chen Yin is deemed to be interested in the 165,455,740
shares interested by Flourish Zone Limited.

(4) CK Hutchison is deemed to be interested in a total of 143,233,151
shares of the Company through its controlled companies.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other interests or short positions in the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 December 2018.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate turnover attributable to the
Group's five largest customers was approximately 57% of
the Group's total turnover and the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 38% of the Group’s turnover.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group’'s five largest suppliers was approximately 90% of
the Group's total purchases and the Group's largest supplier
accounted for approximately 81% of the Group's total
purchases.

At no time during the year, the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest
in these major suppliers or customers.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement that enables the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group’s continuing connected transactions are mainly
transactions in respect of the sales of gold and jewellery and
purchase of showcases for the brand H{ H.K. JEWELRY that
are made with companies in which certain Directors have
interests, such transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions (the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) under
the GEM Listing Rules.

On 30 December 2015, Golden HK Jewellery (Shenzhen)
Company Limited* (“Golden HK Jewellery”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Master Agreement
|, Master Agreement Il, Master Agreement |Il and Master
Agreement |V with Hangzhou Baidi Jewellery Company Limited*
(“Baidi Jewellery”), Shenzhen City Zhong Chuang Union
Investment Company Limited* (“Zhong Chuang”), Shenzhen
Didi Jewellery Culture Development Company Limited* (”Didi
Culture”) and Hangzhou Didi Commercial Showcases Company
Limited* (“Didi Showcases”). The aforementioned continuing
connected transactions were expired on 31 December 2018.

On 31 December 2015, Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Company
Limited* (“Shenzhen Yihua"”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, and Golden HK Jewellery entered into the framework
leasing agreement (the “Framework Leasing Agreement”),
pursuant to which Shenzhen Yihua as the lessor has agreed to
lease the office premises owned by Shenzhen Yihua to Golden
HK Jewellery as the lessee for the purpose of Golden HK
Jewellery conducting its daily operation. The aforementioned
Continuing connected transactions expired on 31 December
2017.

*  For identification purpose only

BEROIEZ2ZH
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING ESRBFEBEXRZ 2=

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions

Name of counterparties

RXEHEH

Nature of
transactions

REMEE

X5

(a) Date of Agreement

(b) Terms
(a) #33& B A
(b) HAPR

2018
—E-N\F
HK$"000
TER

2017
—E—+F
HK$'000
BT

(I Hangzhou Baidi Jewellery Company
Limited ( Baidi Jewellery”)
(Note 2)
MNERHKEER AR ([ FEKE])
(Kt:22)

(1) Shenzhen City Zhong Chuang Union
Investment Company Limited
( Zhong Chuang") (Note 1)
A TREEEREERAR
(el (HreEr)

(I Shenzhen Didi Jewellery Culture
Development Company Limited
( Didi Culture”) (Note 2)
AR E B R AR AT
(s xfv |) (Hfat2)

Sales of gold and
jewellery products

HEES RKEER

Sales of gold and
jewellery products
HERS RKEER

Purchase of
packaging
materials for
the jewellery
products

BEREEMIBE
M

Master Agreement |

(a) 30 December 2015

(b) 1 January 2016 -

31 December 2018

Bl

@) —Z—HF+-A=1H
b) ZE—X~"E—F—H=Z
—E-N\Ft+=-A=t—H

Master Agreement I

(a) 30 December 2015

(b) 1 January 2016 -

31 December 2018

Bl

A —Z—RF+-A=1+H
b) ZE—A~"F—HA—HBZ
- N\Ft+=-A=1+—H

Master Agreement |l

(a) 30 December 2015

(b) 1 January 2016 -

31 December 2018

Bzl

@ ZE—RHF+=-A=1H
b) ZE—R~"F—HF—H=Z
—E—-\F+=-A=1+—H
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING ESRBFEBEXRZ 2=
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Nature of (a) Date of Agreement 2018 2017
Name of counterparties transactions (b) Terms —E-NF —ZT—+tF
(a) % B 58 HK$°000 HK$'000
X7 HER REME (b) HAFR TET FET
(IV)  Hangzhou Didi Commercial Purchase of Master Agreement IV - 224
Showcases Company Limited showcases for the  (a) 30 December 2015
( Didi Showcases”) (Note 2) brand (b) 1 January 2016 -
mMaaEERABRA R (adk B HK JEWELRY 31 December 2018
B1)(H3#2) BEHH E45RR  ap3
I8 AR (a) ZE—AF+-A=1H
b) ZE—"F—-H—HZ
—E-N\F+-A=+—H
(V) Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Company Operating lease Framework Leasing Agreement N/A 2,386
Limited { Shenzhen Yihua") (Note charges on (a) 31 December 2015 TiE A
3) land and building (b) 1 January 2015 -
FYMEEGEEHRNERDA(FE T RETLEREE 31 December 2017
YIBE |)(f:23) il ERHERE
(0 ZZ-RF+T-A=t—H
b) ZE—HF—-A—HZE
“E—+tF+-RA=1—H
Relationship between Connected Parties EARAE S 2 BAR
Notes: HtaE -

(1)

2)

(3)

Zhong Chuang is owned as to 81% by the brother of Ms. Li Xia.
Accordingly, Zhong Chuang is an associate of Ms. Li Xia, and
hence a connected person of the Company under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

Baidi Jewellery, Didi Culture and Didi Showcases is respectively
owned as to 90%, 100% and 100% by Hangzhou Didi
Investment Joint Stock Company Limited, which in turn is
owned as to 90% by Mr. Lin Feifei. Therefore, each of Baidi
Jewellery, Didi Packaging and Didi Showcases is an associate
of Mr. Lin Di, and hence a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Shenzhen Yihua is a substantial shareholder of the Company
holding approximately 26.30% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at 31 December 2017 and is owned as to
approximately 80% by Mr. Chong Yu Ping.

(1)

2)

(3)

FEIBFEL L ZAFFE8 %t  FUL
FRIRFELLZHEA » HIRIERGEM L4
AlE=—1%  BERARFZEEAL °

BB E X AE R EA S B B
HIRER D AR FAHAFI0% ~ 100% K 100%
B - MR E R H R 2 5] Al 5 AR HE
WEEEHBIO B - Bt HHEHE - il
B R ERY BB EZHEBA - IR
WEGEM FTTHRIE=+F + EBA L] ZFE
AL e

FHEEZEBZA NG ETEZRE  FHEARA]
R-E—+F+ - H=+—HEZETREXLY
26.30% R EFIELEFFHAIS0%AHE ©
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Relationship between Connected Parties (Continued)

Therefore, transactions under Master Agreement (l) to (IV) and
the Framework Leasing Agreement above constitute Continuing
Connected Transactions of the Company under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

The above Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Master Agreement (l) to (IV) and the Framework Leasing
Agreement are subject to various annual cap amounts disclosed
in the Company’'s announcement dated 30 December 2015.
Capitalised terms used in this section shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the above announcement unless
specified otherwise.

Opinion of the Independent Non-executive Directors

All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been
reviewed by the Company’'s independent non-executive
Directors who have confirmed that: (i) the terms and conditions
of each of the Continuing Connected Transactions are on
normal commercial terms that are fair and reasonable so
far as the independent shareholders are concerned; (ii) the
respective proposed annual caps for the Continuing Connected
Transactions for the three years ended 31 December 2018 are
fair and reasonable so far as the independent shareholders are
concerned; and (iii) the Continuing Connected Transactions are
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group and in the interest of the Company and the shareholders
as a whole.

Opinion of the Auditor

The Company’'s Auditor was engaged to report on the
Group's Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised)“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’'s Letters on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Auditor has issued an unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed by the Group
above in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Auditor has reported to the Directors that the
above Continuing Connected Transactions: (1) have received
the approval of the Board; (2) are in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Company; (3) have been carried out in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the agreements
governing the transactions; and (4) have not exceeded the
relevant annual caps.
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OTHER CONNECTED AND RELATED H{tEELFIRBEEKIRKS
PARTY TRANSACTIONS
2018 2017
Name of counterparty Nature of transactions “E-N\F CZE—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
REHE® XHMHE THET AT
- Excel Technology International Professional fee received 9,238 36,668
(Hong Kong) Limited BRELER
("Excel HK") (Note 1) Professional fee paid 1,496 12,055
—ERMERER (FE)BR ENEXER
NE([FBEE]) Purchase of complementary - 12,014
(Hizt1) hardware and software
BERER MR
Administration expenses 360 1,440
reimbursements (Net paid)
THRAX ME (2 HFE)
Staff cost reimbursements 147 425
BT ARE
- Shenzhen Yihua (Note 2) Sales of gold and jewellery 203 105
—FBE(f72) products
HEBSLHEER
Operating lease charge on 2,493 N/A
land and building NEA
T REFEEREER
Bt -

Note:

(1)

2)

Percentage of interest in Excel HK held by the Company
indirectly decrease from 50% to 5% on 29 March 2018
and decreased from 5% to nil on 31 August 2018. At as 31
December 2017, Excel HK is an associate of the Company’s
subsidiary holding 50% of the issued share capital of Excel HK.
The amounts represented transactions with Excel HK from 1
January 2018 up to 29 March 2018 (2017: from 1 January 2017
to 31 December 2017).

Shenzhen Yihua is a substantial shareholder of the Company
holding approximately 45.11% (2017: 26.3%) of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2018 and is
owned as to approximately 80% by Mr. Chong Yu Ping.

(1)

2)

AR A REB B BRI A mEm AR =F—
NFE=ZA=—FNLHA0%EZEE% + TR -F—
NENA=Z+—HABEZE - R —F—+4F
+=A=+—H  EBEBEANANELFZ
BENA]  ZHBA A EBEBEETRA
250% ° LEIEEBEBR=-_F—/\F—HA—H
BT NFA=FNA(ZF—tF: —F—
+EFE—HA—HE - F—+F+-"H=+—H)ZX
5 o

RINBEEZALNAEFERRK - FHARA
RZBE-NFF+ZA=+—HEZTREL
45.11% (ZF—+4F : 26.3%) + WHILFF5E
R BHIS0% IRHE °
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

At 31 December 2018, none of the Directors, the management
shareholders or their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in a business which causes
or may cause significant competition with the business of the
Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to the date of this report,
there was or is any permitted indemnity provision being in force
for the benefit of any directors of the Company (whether made
by the Company or otherwise) or of its associated company (made
by the Company).

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

All the Directors do not have any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship with each other.

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations of
independence were received from each of the Company's
independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and all independent non-executive
Directors are considered to be independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 11 August
2000 with written terms of reference in accordance with Rules
5.28 to 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee
currently comprise three members — Mr. Lam Tin Faat, Ms.
Zhao Xiaxia and Ms. Na Xin, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the chairman of the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee’s principal duties are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group. The Audit Committee
met on a quarterly basis during the year ended 31 December
2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESTHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 12 to 24.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Grant Thornton Hong
Kong Limited as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong
29 March 2018
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBAESREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping, also known as Mr. Zhuang
Ruping (Age 52)

Chairman

Mr. Chong is the Chairman of the Company, who is responsible
for leading the work of the Board and setting operation direction
and investment strategies for the Company. Mr. Chong has
over 20 years of relevant experience in the jewellery and
investment industry. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chong
has been appointed as the general manager and executive
Director of a private company, Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery
Limited* and from 2011 to present, he is the director and legal
representative of Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Limited, a company
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company as disclosed
under the section headed “Substantial Shareholders” in the
Directors’ Report included herein. Mr. Chong was appointed as
an executive Director and as the Chairman of the Company on
17 February 2016.

Ms. LI Xia (Age 45)

Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Li is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, who
is responsible for the corporate planning and business
development of the Company. Ms. Li served in Shanghai
Shenggiu Investment Development Limited*, and was
appointed as executive vice president with her experience
and strength in jewellery industry. Ms. Li was responsible for
administration and human resource management, marketing
operations and brand promotion. At the same time, Ms. Li also
served as the special-commissioned jewellery operating adviser
for Baidi Jewellery to lead the company to achieve excellent
results, which made her the veteran in the jewellery business.
Ms. Li graduated from Central Luzon State University, Republic
of the Philippines with a degree of Bachelor of Science in
Business Administration. Ms. Li has been an Executive Director
of the Group since 3 July 2012.

*  For identification purpose only
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEAEBER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. CHEN Yin (Age 37)

Mr. Chen is an entrepreneur in the Mainland China, who
held senior positions in various private companies principally
engaged in luxury goods trading business. Mr. Chen obtained
the Diploma of Graduate Gemologist, Diploma of Diamonds and
Diploma of Colored Stones from the Gemological Institute of
America (“GIA"). Mr. Chen has been as an Executive Director
of the Group since 3 July 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LAM Tin Faat (Age 43)

Mr. Lam holds a bachelor degree of business administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has more
than 10 years of experience in financial audit, accounting and
financial management. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Mr. Lam is also the sole proprietor of TF Lam &
Company, a CPA practice in Hong Kong, and a director of Top
Team Secretary Limited. Mr. Lam has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Group since 3 July 2012.

Ms. LU Haina (Age 40)

Ms. Lu was appointed as an independent Non-executive Director
of the group on 3 July 2012 and resigned on 9 July 2018. Ms.
Lu possesses over 8 years of experience in education in relation
to jewellery design. From 2005 to 2010, Ms. Lu taught at the
school of jewellery of Guangzhou Panyu Polytechnic. Since 2010,
Ms. Lu has been teaching at Guangzhou International Economics
College. Ms. Lu graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University with a
bachelor degree in arts and design and is a holder of a jewellery
designer certificate verified by All-China Federation of Industry &
Commerce.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREBAESREE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (cContinued)

Ms. NA Xin (Age 38)

Ms. Na was the chief operating officer of FITMNEXKE S
#iA PR A A (Shenzhen Jiuha Cai Jewellery Co., Ltd), a company
specialized in qualified jewellery trading business from 2008
to 2012. She was an assistant to chief executive officer for
Little Sheep North America (Vancouver) Branch (/NEF4E3E
GREFE) A a]) from 2012 to 2013. Ms. Na completed her
Bachelor's degree in English in the School of Humanities and
Social Science of Beijing Jiaotong University (formerly known
as the Northern Jiaotong University) in 2003. Ms. Na has been
an independent non-executive Director of the Group since
1 December 2014.

Ms. ZHAO Xiaxia (Aged 39)

Ms. Zhao was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 9 July 2018. Ms. Zhao obtained a college diploma
of history education in Qingdao University (F&AZ) in 2000.
She has been serving as the assistant to the chairman and
deputy general manager of a PRC jewellery company for several
years, principally responsible for executive, management,
and coordination work. Ms. Zhao has ample experience in
marketing, exhibition and operation of jewellery bands.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZRANRE

a Grant Thornton
2[5

To the members of Yu Tak International Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yu
Tak International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to
176, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

and we have
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 3 %% B R S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

A key audit matter is identified in our audit as follows:

Existence and valuation of inventories

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 2.9,
critical accounting estimates and judgements in note 4 and note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matter

As at 31 December 2018,
the Group had inventories
of HK$64,923,000.
Inventories are carried at
the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The Group's inventories
mainly comprised gold
and jewellery products
which are subject to risk of
changes in market value.
In determining the net
realisable value, estimates
and judgements are applied
by the management in
respect of the economic
condition, forecast market
price and marketability of
products.

We considered this as key
audit matter due to the
significance of inventories
(representing 43% of total
assets) and the involvement
of management judgement
and estimation on the
net realisable value of
inventories.
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How the matter was
addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures to the
existence and valuation of
inventories included the following:

attended physical inventory
counts at year end and
performed “two-way"” count
on a sample basis;

inspected the external
laboratory reports on the
authenticity of gold and
jewellery products for the
samples selected by us;

obtained an understanding
of management’s process
for identification of slow-
moving inventories and
estimation of net realisable
value of inventories;

reviewed and analysed the
ageing of inventories and
their associated provisions;
and

reviewing and evaluating
the net realisable value of
inventories, with reference
tosubsequent sales
information and external
market price data, on a
sample basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZRANRE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in
the 2018 annual report of the Company, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible
for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 3 %% B R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZRANRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 3 %% B R S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determined those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communications.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

29 March 2019

Kwok Siu Kwan, Sylvia
Practising Certificate No.: P06616
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SeEsREMEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2018 2017
—E-N\F S
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E F#& T T
Revenue PN 5 97,225 110,174
Other income Eblgas 7 455 3,896
Change in inventories FEEY 28,859 (1,930)
Purchase of goods BEER (45,443) (25,286)
Professional fee EXEA (5,733) (12,652)
Employee benefits expense BEEREAFAX 11 (69,614) (71,176)
Depreciation e (852) (424)
Other expenses EmRZ (21,415) (30,993)
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEE AR 2 WaH5E 34 87 12,359
Loss on disposal of financial HERAREBETAEME
assets at fair value through other ‘iz (MEAREBERA
comprehensive income (“FVOCI")  Hip2 @z ) HEmE
EZEE 17(c) (117) =
Share of results of an associate FEAE — B AR A 15 175 5,532
Loss on deemed disposal of an RIEHE—HBERFZE
associate 18 15 (6,837) -
Loss before income tax HRFTEHAIEE 8 (23,210) (10,500)
Income tax expense Frisfifsz 9 (41) (371)
Loss for the year FREE (23,251) (10,871)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ FREMPE(BIX), W
income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified — B T2 & 521574
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIHEE -
Financial assets at FVOCI - net BEARBET AEMEEK
movement in fair value reserve =NEEE —AREE
(non-recycling) ) FEE (A &) (439) =
tems that will be reclassified B e EN TRk
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIHEE -
Exchange (loss)/gain on translation &GN EFEEIFEIRER A E
of financial statements of foreign H(ER), Wk
operations (3,771) 2,621
Release of exchange reserve upon A HE—EHBARREREE
disposal of a subsidiary HNEE & 2 (4,055)
(4,208) (1,434)
Total comprehensive expense for FRZHEBF AR
the year (27,459) (12,305)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meREREMER DR

fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —E— \F+ -A=1+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FET FET
Loss for the year attributable to: E{hFEREIE :
Owners of the Company KABHER A (23,668) (10,387)
Non-controlling interests IR M 2 417 (484)
(23,251) (10,871)
Total comprehensive expense Eh2mpExEasE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PAN/NETEZ =N (27,876) (11,821)
Non-controlling interests IR 417 (484)
(27,459) (12,305)
Loss per share BREER
Basic and diluted EARKRES 10 (HK1.44 cents{lll) (HKO0.87 cents/1ll)

Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9
at 1 January 2018. Under the transitions method chosen,
comparative information is not restated. See note 3.

The notes on pages 65 to 176 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R 3R

as at 31 December 2018 R —ZF—F+-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\E S
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 FET TFETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 13 4,218 1,156
Interest in an associate R—EE QR 2 15 - 7,522
Interest in a joint venture R—EEERE s 16 = =
Other financial assets HEherEE 17 11,926 -
Development costs BB A 2N 18 - -
16,144 8,678
Current assets nEEE
Inventories FE 19 64,923 36,064
Amounts due from customers for EWRFE &4 Ti2a18
contract work - 7,707
Contract assets EHEE 20 9,456 —
Trade receivables FEUE FER TR 21 6,524 13,507
Other receivables, deposits and Hih U ZOE ~ e &
prepayments TR RIA 22 26,655 20,814
Cash and bank balances L RIRITER 23 27,131 25,675
134,689 103,767
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FERTE 5 BRFK 24 572 1,140
Other payables and accrued charges  Efih B~ ZUIE K& Fa1E & A 25 11,566 21,934
Amounts due to customers for ENREA&4TIEFIE
contract work - 2,217
Contract liabilities EHaE 20 9,285 =
Amounts due to directors FENEZEERIE 26 20,785 20,538
Tax payable FERTFRIR 47 77
42,255 45,906
Net current assets REEEFE 92,434 57,861
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAZERABERE 108,578 66,539
Net assets BEEFE 108,578 66,539
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B BT ESIR R

as'at 31 December 2018 R=—F— \F+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+t5F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T F#& T T
EQUITY IR
Share capital [N 27 178,269 118,846
Reserves 1 (68,369) (50,568)
Equity attributable to owners of 72 GG A FE(GIR1E
the Company 109,900 68,278
Non-controlling interests IR R (1,322) (1,739)
Total equity RRELEE 108,578 66,539
Li Xia B Chong Yu Ping HET
Director - Director =
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9 [ : AEER S —N\E—A— BB XERSEEH

at 1 January 2018. Under the transitions method chosen,
comparative information is not restated. See note 3.

The notes on pages 65 to 176 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - F— \F+ - A=+—HIFZE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KATRENER
Fair valug Non-
Share Exchange Capital ~ reserve - non- Accumulated controlling
Sharg capital premium* reserve* reserve* recycling* losses* Total interests  Total equity
DrEER
RE RbRE  EEET AR B-TUEE  2HER g8 iR higsE
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
Tikn Thn Tikn Thr Tin Thn Tin Tt Thn
Balanoe at 1 January 2017 RIE-+F-f-RRas 118,846 220438 (1,158) (276) - (267 751) 80,099 (4,648) 75,451
Disposal of a stbsidiary note 34lc)) ~ HE-THEAT
(K34 - - - - - - - 3303 339
Transactions with owners BEEALS - - - - - - - 338 33%
Loss for the year EREE = = - - - (10,387) (10,387) (484) (10,871)
Other comprehensive income/{expensel:  E2 N/ (FR):
- Exchange gain on translation of - RO ERERRRY
financil statements of foreign B
operations - - 2621 - - - 260 - 260
- Releese of exchange reseve upon — —HE-THBATERE
disposal of a subsidiary EXfE - - (8,059) - - - (4,058) - (4,058)
Total comprehensive expense for the — ER2ERFHEE
year - - (1,434) = = (10,387) (11,821) (484) (12,305)
Balance at 31 December 2017 W-E-tE+-A=1-A
K 118,846 20,438 (2592) (276) - (268,138) 68218 (1,739) 66,539
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEERBER

for'the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - F— /\F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANRERARL
Fair value Non-
Share  Exchange Capital reserve-non-  Accumulated controlling
Share capital ~ premium* reserve* reserve*  recycling* losses* Total interests  Total equity
MEER
Ra  RftRE*  MERE*  EARRE &-TREE  EiER B8 HEREE  WESE
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T T#n T#n T#n T#n Tn T#7n Tén T
Balance at 1 January 2018 NE-N\E-R-BiEH 118,846 20438 (2,592) (276) - 268,138) 68,278 (1,739) 66,539
Adjustment from the adoption of B RS E0R
HKFRS 9 (note 3 R (Ra) . ; § - 105 - 105 - 1o
Adjusted balance at 1 January 208 =2\ E-F - A
Bits 118 846 220438 (2,592) (276) 12545 268,138) 80,823 (1,739) 79,084
Issue of ordinary shares on Rights lssue  RERERTEER
fnote 27} (Wk270) 59423 (2470) - - - - 56,953 - 56,953
Transactions with owners HEEARS 59,423 (2470) - - - - 56,953 - 56,953
Loss for the year EmEE - - - - - (23,668) (23,668 7 (23,251)
Other comprehensive incomelexpensel: 2T /(FR):
- Exchange loss on transltion of - BEB AN
financial statements of foreign EREE
operations - - (3m) - = = (37m) = (31m)
- Release of exchange resenve vpon ~ —HE-TEHELARER
disposal of & subsidiary B tiE = - 2 - - - 2 - )
- Financil asses at FVOCI - net -BAABETALAE
movement in fai value reserve stk
BEREEG5E - - - - (439) - (439) = (439)
- Amount reclassified to accumulated -~ HERAL EEAR
losses upon disposal of financial FENGNEREER
assets at FVOC| EnBRZNERY
4% = - - - (180) 180 - - =
Total comprehensive lexpenselfncome  ERAT(E) /U
for the year - - (3,769) - (619) (23,488) (27,876) 47 (27,459)
Balance at 31 December 2018 WE-NETZA=1-R
[ifi 178,269 217,968 (6,361) (276) 11,926 (291,626) 109,900 (1322) 108,578

*

statement of financial position.

The notes on pages 65 to 176 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

These reserves accounts comprise the Group's deficit of
HK$68,369,000 (2017: HK$50,568,000) in the consolidated

JT) °

B —&RD ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E F#& T T
Cash flows from operating RERLEETH2HESRE
activities
Loss before income tax HMBRETS AT ES 1B (23,210) (10,500)
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation e 852 424
Net loss on written off/disposal of  #fits " HEWE  BWEKL
property, plant and equipment RiE2 FEE 10 -
Interest income Bz (33) (107)
Expected credit losses (“ECL") BHEEER([BHEE
allowance/Loss allowance on B8 ) BE Hib
other receivables HIEEERE 126 10,514
Net gain on disposal of HERB ARz =558
subsidiaries 34 (87) (12,359)
Loss on disposal of financial HERA R BEFT AEAM
assets at FVOCI EANENSREE
E518 17(b) 117 =
Loss on deemed disposal of an BAEHE —HEE A a2
associate [E518 15(a) 6,837 =
Share of results of an associate FE(E—fEE & AR EE (175) (5,532)
Exchange gain G (710) (2,032)
Operating loss before working BEE R 2 K EEE
capital changes (16,273) (19,592)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories  F&(3%E0),/ i (30,361) 4,489
Increase in contract assets/ ANEE,/ RUEFEEH
amounts due from customers TAZFRIEHE N
for contract work (2,093) (2,237)
Decrease in trade receivables FEUE 5 B8R FUR 6,352 1,802
Increase in other receivables, HihEWFIE « e KTE
deposits and prepayments EFRIEIE AN (5,096) (21,450)
Decrease in trade payables B SRR (450) (19,658)
(Decrease)/Increase in other Hitn eI R E A
payables and accrued charges CRA) /2 hn (9,481) 22,383
Increase in contract liabilities/ BHBE TENEFAY
amounts due to customers for T2 FRIEHE N
contract work 8,229 2,405
Cash used in operations BT 2% (49,173) (31,858)
Income tax paid B FTEH (70) (294)
Net cash used in operating activities A84 % & H . 12 F58 (49,243) (32,152)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERETRER

for'the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z - F— /\F+ - A=1+—HIFFZE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B3 F#& T T
Cash flows from investing REREEFHZ2HEESHRE
activities
Decrease in interest in an associate FA—RIEE4 A 72 #Eas R - 15,504
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE  MENMEE
equipment (3,970) (615)
Repayment of loans to an investee [A—RHA R THEEER
company - 4,480
Net cash (outflow)/inflow arising on HEMBARIFMELZRS
disposal of subsidiaries CRd),/mAEEE 34 (2,836) 1,007
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERARLBETAEME
assets at FVOCI HE =K B E 2 2 FTS
RIB 923 =
Interest received B FILE 33 107
Net cash (used in)/generated from  IREEZE)(BTFH) FIELZ
investing activities BEFE (5,850) 20,483
Cash flows from financing REBMEEFH 2ESRE
activities
Net proceeds from issuance of MRS 21T E B AR PSS X
ordinary shares on Rights Issue TH 5% 271i) 56,953 -
Advances from directors EEZEN 247 5,492
Net cash generated from financing FtE&EEFrEL > FEE
activities 57,200 5,492
Net increase/(decrease) in cash HeRBELESEY LM
and cash equivalents CEA) 358 2,107 (6,177)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 R—A—BzREe&RkREeE
January BY 25,675 30,041
Effect on foreign exchange rate fEREE) v &
changes (651) 1,811
Cash and cash equivalents at31 R+=-A=+—HZzHELR
December, represented by cash BHE&ZEY - HEERE
and bank balances TER 27,131 25,675

Note:

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9

at 1 January 2018. Under the transitions method chosen,

comparative information is not restated. See note 3.

The notes on pages 65 to 176 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability. The address of its registered office
is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and its principal place of business is Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the development, sale and
implementation of enterprise software, provision of
systems integration and professional services, design
and sales of gold and jewellery products and investment
holding. The Group's operations are based in Hong Kong
and the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 were approved for issue by the board
of directors on 29 March 2019.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These annual consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“"HKASs"”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR

fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

66

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM
Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented unless otherwise stated.
The adoption of new and amended HKFRSs and
the impacts on the Group's financial statements,
if any, are disclosed in note 3.

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis, except
for certain financial assets which are stated at
fair values. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management's best
knowledge and judgement of current events and
actions, actual results may ultimately differ from
those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group
has power over the entity, only substantive rights
relating to the entity (held by the Group and
others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements
from the date it gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on sales of intra-group asset are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset
is also tested for impairment from the Group's
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR

fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —E— \F+ -A=1+—HIFE

2.

68

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on
a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets
the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Where certain assets of the
subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts
or fair values and the related cumulative gain or
loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted
for as if the Company had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to accumulated losses).

In the Company’'s statement of financial
position, subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss unless the subsidiary is held for
sale or included in a disposal group. Cost includes
directly attributable costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable at the reporting date. All dividends
whether received out of the investee's pre or
post-acquisition profits are recognised in the
Company'’s profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR

fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —E— \F+ -A=1+—HIFE

2.

70

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence, which is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control of those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions relating about
relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

In the consolidated financial statements, an
investment in an associate or a joint venture
is initially recognised at cost and subsequently
accounted for using the equity method. Any
excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the associate or joint venture recognised at the
date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill.
The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment. The cost
of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity
instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment. Any excess
of the Group’'s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the determination of the Group’s share
of the associate or joint venture's profit or loss in
the period in which the investment acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group’'s interest in
the associate or joint venture is carried at cost and
adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the associate or joint venture's
net assets less any identified impairment loss,
unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale). The profit or loss for the year includes
the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-
tax results of the associate or joint venture for
the year, including any impairment loss on the
investment in associate or joint venture recognised
for the year. The Group's other comprehensive
income for the year includes its share of the
associate or joint venture's other comprehensive
income for the year.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associate and joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in
the associate or joint venture. Where unrealised
losses on assets sales between the Group and its
associate or joint venture are reversed on equity
accounting, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from the Group's perspective. Where
the associate or joint venture uses accounting
policies other than those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances,
adjustments are made, where necessary, to
conform the associate or joint venture's accounting
policies to those of the Group when the associate
or joint venture's financial statements are used by
the Group in applying the equity method.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR
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2.

72

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in
the associate or joint venture, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate or joint venture. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate
or joint venture is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with
the Group’s long-term interests that in substance
form part of the Group’'s net investment in the
associate or joint venture.

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise
an additional impairment loss on the Group's
investment in its associate or joint venture.
At each reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is any objective evidence that
the investment in associate or joint venture is
impaired. If such indications are identified, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as
being the difference between the recoverable
amount (i.e. higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal) of the associate or joint
venture and its carrying amount. In determining
the value in use of the investment, the Group
estimates its share of the present value of the
estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the associate or joint venture,
including cash flows arising from the operations of
the associate or joint venture and the proceeds on
ultimate disposal of the investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR I

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of equity method
from the date when it ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a
joint venture. If the retained interest in that former
associate or joint venture is a financial asset, the
retained interest is measured at fair value, which
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition
as a financial asset in accordance with HKFRS 9.
The difference between (i) the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate or joint venture;
and (ii) the carrying amount of the investment at
the date the equity method was discontinued,
is recognised in the profit or loss. In addition,
the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that associate or joint venture on the
same basis as would have been required if the
associate or joint venture had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by the investee would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the entity reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR
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2.

74

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is
also the functional currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated (i.e.
only translated using the exchange rates at the
transaction date).

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into HK$. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the exchange reserve in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4

2.5

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’'s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the accumulated exchange differences in
respect of that operation attributable to the Group
are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange
differences that have previously been attributed
to non-controlling interests are derecognised, but
they are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially
recognised at acquisition cost, including any cost
directly attributable to bringing the assets to the
location and condition necessary for them to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
the Group’'s management. They are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method, at the following rates per annum:

20% to 33"°%
10% to 50%
20% to 25%
25% to 30%

Leasehold improvements
Computer and office equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

76

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Estimates of residual value and useful life are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in the profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance, are charged
to the profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Development costs

Costs associated with research activities are
expensed in profit or loss as they occur. Costs
that are directly attributable to development
activities are recognised as intangible assets
provided they meet the following recognition
requirements:

(i) demonstration of technical feasibility of the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

(i) there is an intention to complete the
intangible asset and use or sell it;

(iii) the Group's ability to use or sell the
intangible asset is demonstrated;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

Development costs (Continued)

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable
economic benefits through internal use or
sale;

(v) sufficient technical, financial and other
resources are available for completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset can be reliably measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on
development activities along with an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads. The costs of
development of internally generated software,
products or knowhow that meet the above
recognition criteria are recognised as intangible
assets.

All other development costs are expensed as
incurred.

After initial recognition of the development
costs as intangible assets, the intangible assets
with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is provided on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible
assets are available for use. The following useful
life is applied:

Capitalised development costs 3 years
The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment as
described below in note 2.17.
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fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Financial instruments
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when the financial asset
and substantially all of its risks and rewards are
transferred. A financial liability is derecognised
when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Financial assets

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

Classification and initial measurement of financial
assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component and are
measured at the transaction price in accordance
with HKFRS 15, all financial assets are initially
measured at fair value, in case of a financial asset
not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Financial assets, other than those designated and
effective as hedging instruments, are classified
into the following categories:

- amortised cost;

- FVTPL; or

- fair value through other comprehensive

income (“FVOCI").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Classification and initial measurement of financial
assets (Continued)
The classification is determined by both:

- the entity’s business model for managing
the financial asset; and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial
assets that are recognised in profit or loss are
presented within finance costs or other income,
except for expected credit losses (“ECL") of
trade receivables which is presented within other
expenses.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if
the assets meet the following conditions (and are
not designated as FVTPL):

- they are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the financial
assets and collect its contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets
give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR

fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Debt investments (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)
After initial recognition, these are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income in profit or
loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect of
discounting is immaterial. The Group's cash and
bank balances and trade and other receivables
(excluding prepayments and value-added tax
recoverable) fall into this category of financial
instruments.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as
FVTPL unless the equity investment is not held
for trading purposes and on initial recognition of
the investment, the Group elects to designate
the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in “Fair value reserve — non-recycling” in equity.
Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from
the issuer’s perspective.

The equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject
to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain
or loss in “Fair value reserve — non-recycling” will
not be reclassified to profit or loss upon disposal
of the equity investments, and will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established. Dividends are included in the “other
income” line item in profit or loss.
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e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018

Classification and measurement of financial assets
Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

- loans and receivables

- available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at FVTPL, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and includes fees
that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR

fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018 (Continued)

(ii)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets that do not
qualify for inclusion in any of the other
categories of financial assets are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets.

All financial assets within this category
are subsequently measured at fair value.
Gain or loss arising from a change in the
fair value excluding any dividend and
interest income is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the investment revaluation
reserve in equity, except for impairment
losses (see note 2.8) and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary assets, until
the financial asset is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
Interest calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in profit or
loss.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary
assets denominated in a foreign currency
is determined in that foreign currency
and translated at the spot rate at the
reporting date. The change in fair value
attributable to translation differences that
result from a change in amortised cost of
the asset is recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018 (Continued)

(i1) Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the
end of each reporting date subsequent to
initial recognition.

Financial liabilities

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables and amounts due to directors.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value, and, where applicable, adjusted for
transaction costs unless the Group designated a
financial liability at fair value through profit or loss.
Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method except for derivatives and financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL, which are carried
subsequently at fair value with gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss.

All interest-related charges are included in profit or
loss.

Trade and other payables and amounts due to
directors

Trade and other payables and amounts due to
directors are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR

fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —E— \F+ -A=1+—HIFE

2.

84

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets

Policy applicable after 1 January 2018

HKFRS 9's impairment requirements use more
forward-looking information to recognise ECL -

e "ECL model”. Instruments within the scope
included loans and other debt-type financial assets
measured at amortised cost, trade receivables,
contract assets recognised and measured under
HKFRS 15.

The Group considers a broader range of
information when assessing credit risk and
measuring ECL, including past events, current
conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts
that affect the expected collectability of the future
cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a
distinction is made between:

- financial instruments that have not
deteriorated significantly in credit quality
since initial recognition or that have low
credit risk (“Stage 1"); and

- financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low
("Stage 2").

“Stage 3" would cover financial assets that have
objective evidence of impairment at the reporting
date.

“12-month ECL" are recognised for the Stage 1
category while “lifetime ECL" are recognised for
the Stage 2 category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a
probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over
the expected life of the financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Policy applicable after 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating
ECL and recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL at each reporting date. These are
the expected shortfalls in contractual cash flows,
considering the potential for default at any point
during the life of the financial assets. In calculating
the ECL, the Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience and external indicators, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and
the economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables and
contract assets have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The contract assets relate to unbilled work
in progress and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same types of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the ECL rates for trade receivables
are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates
for the contract assets.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR

fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —E— \F+ -A=1+—HIFE

2.

86

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Policy applicable after 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group measures the loss allowance for other
receivables equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of default
occurring since initial recognition.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial assets at the reporting date with the
risk of default occurring on the financial assets
at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR I

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Impairment of financial assets and

contract assets (Continued)

Policy applicable after 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

(Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk

has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR

fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

88

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Policy applicable after 1 January 2018 (Continued)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
(Continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if
the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the end of each reporting period. A
debt instrument is determined to have low credit
risk if it has a low risk of default, the borrower has
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and adverse changes
in economic and business conditions in the longer
term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash
flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the Group).

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables, contract assets and other financial
assets measured at amortised cost are set out in
note 36.4.

Financial guarantee contracts

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is
required to make payments only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms
of the instrument that is guaranteed. Accordingly,
the ECL is the present value of the expected
payments to the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to
receive from the holder, the debtor or any other

party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets and
contract assets (Continued)

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at FVTPL are reviewed to determine whether
there is any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or
more of the following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- It becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- Significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor;

- The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; and

- A significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial
assets include observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from the group of financial
assets. Such observable data includes but not
limited to adverse changes in the payment status
of debtors in the group and, national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B SRR

fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —E— \F+ -A=1+—HIFE

2.

90

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets and

contract assets (Continued)

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018 (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss
is measured and recognised as follows:

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

The amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’'s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in
the profit or loss of the period in which the
impairment occurs.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that the carrying amount of the financial
asset at the date the impairment is
reversed, does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Impairment of financial assets and

contract assets (Continued)

Policy applicable before 1 January 2018 (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Available-for-sale financial assets carried at
fair value

When a decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale financial asset has
been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, an amount is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss
as an impairment loss. That amount is
measured as the difference between the
asset’s acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale
and stated at fair value are not recognised
in the profit or loss. The subsequent
increase in fair value is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Financial assets carried at cost

For financial assets carried at cost, the
amount of impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the present value
of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. The amount of the
impairment losses is recognised in profit or
loss of the period in which the impairment
occurs and not reversed in subsequent
periods.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR

fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —E— \F+ -A=1+—HIFE

2.

92

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

2.1

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value and are determined using the
first in, first out method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the applicable selling expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 2.16) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration
under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2.8 and
are reclassified to receivables when the right to
the consideration has become unconditional (see
note 2.7).

A contract liability is recognised when the
customer pays consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 2.16).
A contract liability would also be recognised if
the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note 2.7).

For a single contract with the customer, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets
and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts are
not presented on a net basis.

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2.

FESHBEERBE#)

2.9

2.10

2.1

FE
FEAKAEA B FEMERZ
BAREDIBR MR A R ST AE
E o AERFERATEEKBRESD
2 fhEt & (BB R 2 an 4E B $H S K
ZK o

RERREEEY

RekReEBYERRITERR

BHNEEREGHNARE

EARKBERIRE S KIFTE BRI
AR A UV E 2 ATRERUA
(RIfE2.16)8 @ ERANEE -
BHEERBEN T2 8PAEREETT
BHEEEENE - XRKEIKE
BRI A R R B BT D R E TR
WA (R HEE2.7) »

EREFRALEERIZHEBERA(R
MiaE2.16) B X MR ER - BIfER
AHEE - WEASEREREHS
WA BT AN B B £ IR RE A W ER R
B NEEREVEE - EHER
T o IR e RR AR FE FE R IE (R B
$2.7) °

REEFHNE—ROME @ 254
MEEFELANEEFE -3
ZHEHME - THESHNEH
BENGHABISRFEELSR
5I| o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised
as deferred income within other payables. The fair
value of financial guarantees is determined based
on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required
under the debt instruments and the payments
that would be required without the guarantee, or
the estimated amount that would be payable to
a third party for assessing the obligations. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss
on initial recognition of any deferred income.

Subsequently, financial guarantees are measured
at the higher of the amount determined in
accordance with ECL under HKFRS 9 as set out
in note 2.8 (applicable from 1 January 2018)/HKAS
37 (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) and the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised over the guarantee period.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

94

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(1) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

(i) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use
assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the time pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14

2.15

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued, after deducting
any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares (net of any related income tax benefit)
to the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR

fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —E— \F+ -A=1+—HIFE

2.

96

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the
Group follows a 5-step process:

1. |dentifying the contract with a customer

2. Identifying the performance obligations

3. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the

performance obligations

5y Recognising revenue when/as performance
obligation(s) are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for
a contract is allocated amongst the various
performance obligations based on their relative
stand-alone selling prices. The transaction price
for a contract excludes any amounts collected on
behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time
or over time, when (or as) the Group satisfies
performance obligations by transferring the
promised goods or services to its customers.

Details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Jewellery Products

(a) Revenue from the sales of gold and jewellery
products for a fixed fee is recognised when
or as the Group transfers control of the
assets to the customer.

(b) Franchise income is recognised on an
accrual basis over the terms of the relevant
franchise agreements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued)

IT Products and Services

(a)

(b)

(c)

Enterprise software products

Revenue from the development of customised
software is recognised over time as the
Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls. The progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the
basis of direct measurements of the value of
the services transferred to the customer to
date relative to the services promised under
the contract, that best depict the Group's
performance in transferring control of goods or
services.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred
that are expected to be recovered.

Warranties associated with enterprise software
products cannot be purchased separately and
are served as an assurance that the products
sold comply with agreed-upon specifications (i.e.
assurance-type warranties). Accordingly, the
Group accounts for warranties in accordance
with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”.

Maintenance service income is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the terms of
the relevant maintenance service contracts.

System integration

Revenue from sale of complementary hardware
and software products and software licences
is recognised when or as the Group transfers
control of the assets to the customer.

Professional services

Professional services income are recognised
in the period when the services are provided.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR

fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —E— \F+ -A=1+—HIFE

2.

98

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2.17

Others

(a)

Consultancy and management fee income
in respect of technical support, consultancy
services and management services are
recognised in the period when services are
rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The following assets are subject to impairment

testing

Development costs;

Property, plant and equipment;

Interest in an associate;

Interest in a joint venture; and

The Company's interests in subsidiaries

They are tested for impairment whenever there
are indications that the asset’s carrying amount
may not be recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Impairment of non-financial assets

(Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generate cash inflows independently
(i.,e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units is charged pro rata to the assets in the cash-
generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less cost of disposal, or value in use, if
determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the asset’'s recoverable amount
and only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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B SRR

fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

100

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme under the Mandatory
Provident Fund (“MPF") Schemes Ordinance, for
all of its employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
which operate in the PRC, Taiwan, Malaysia and
Singapore are required to participate in the central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as employees rendered services
during the year. The Group's obligations under
these plans are limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEESHHBEHEME®)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

219 Fi8HzEstH%E

2.19 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting period, that are unpaid at the reporting
date. They are calculated according to the tax
rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods
to which they relate, based on the taxable profit
for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax
expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the end of
the reporting period between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be
utilised.

PSR IE BN HA SR AE TR IR -

PSR EER HXABRER
g2 RAE (AN 2HE B
AXM) - ARBEBHRARKZE
EHREBBERZIRE - JTIRIE
FARRRDB RN - A B RHE
ZBERRERRFBEGETE - B
MREERBBEZAAZHHIIA
BRERORARX °

BREFBDERERAREERE
ERMBHRERZEAEEERE 2
MENERFZHUBEETE - &
ERBAE-RUMBERRE R
ERHERAE -

By Bk ) P R R (75 & HERR 51
REARGTNEENBBELZE
BEREHERN RGBS T EY
2 ATremRECRAEENE
1$

= ©

ZE)\FFER HERERERERAR 101



NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B SRR

fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-A=+—HIFFZ

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FEESTHEHEE®R)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 219 BBz HEE)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not HREES Y SHER(ERS GBI
recognised if the temporary difference arises from HESSGHNEENBREA ZE
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than HEREEERN ST ERTEY
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities 2 ATerRRAELEHBEBEENLE
in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor & o

accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable RHE AR « —BEEE AR E—MH
temporary differences arising on investments BENEIREMELENERRE
in subsidiaries, an associate and a joint venture BFEHERRARLEHREAEE
except where the Group is able to control the MEZN £2 [ A 42 I B B = 5E 2 B[O %
reversal of the temporary differences and it is NefEsHREE v B =58 8%
probable that the temporary differences will not G o

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, ELERIBEAN TR - WiRTEHAE A
at tax rates that are expected to apply in the RNEZEBENEHEESHAB HME
period the liability is settled or the asset realised, e EMERRERBHEADHE
provided they are enacted or substantively sy BN B EM o

enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities BERBEESBEZZSH INE

are recognised in profit or loss, or in other mEAPRER  WEREME2ERK

comprehensive income or directly in equity if they e EREE NGRS GTFAZER R

relate to items that are charged or credited to W AREHEEEXABZED

other comprehensive income or directly to equity. P E fih 2 U B B 3 FO R b 1

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are BIEAF & = R AT B B EE T

presented in net if, and only if: UTRER TN FREZS -

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right (a) AEEKERBFINITE
to set off the recognised amounts; and HEBREBEE Kk

(b)  intends either to settle on a net basis, or (b) BERFEELELHE  HF
to realise the asset and settle the liability BEHEEERSTAE

simultaneously.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only if:

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

2.20 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’'s major product and service
lines.
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2.

104

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Segment reporting (Continued)

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

o Jewellery Products: design and sales of
gold and jewellery products

o IT Products and Services: provision of
information technology services and
sales of products including enterprise
software products, systems integration and
professional services

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried
out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to
the Group if:

(a) the party is a person, or a close member of
that person’s family and if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a
parent of the Group.

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are
members of the same group.

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party.
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NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.

106

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

the party is an entity and if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RR I

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2018

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new and amended HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group's
operations and effective for the Group’'s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2018:
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers and the
related Amendments
Applying HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle

HK (IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency
Transactions and

Advance Consideration

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new and
amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the
results and financial position for the current and prior
periods have been prepared and presented.

3.
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3.

108

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3.

HKFRSs (Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”. It makes major changes
to the previous guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial assets and introduces an “ECL
model” for the impairment of financial assets.

When adopting HKFRS 9, the Group has applied
the standard retrospectively to items that existed
at 1 January 2018 in accordance with the transition
requirement and also applied transitional relief and opted
not to restate prior periods. Differences arising from
the adoption of HKFRS 9 in relation to classification,
measurement, and impairment are recognised in
accumulated losses.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has impacted the following
area:

- investments in unlisted equity investments
previously classified as available-for-sale financial
assets under HKAS 39 measured at fair value
with gain or loss changes being recognised in
other comprehensive income and at cost less
impairment, respectively, are now measured at fair
value. The Group elected to irrevocably designate
them at fair value with changes presented in other
comprehensive income. Since the accounting
treatment of investments in unlisted equity
investments carried at cost less impairment under
HKAS 39 is no longer applicable under HKFRS 9,
the carrying amount was restated from HK$nil to
its fair value of HK$12,545,000 as at 1 January
2018, and the difference of HK$12,545,000 is
being recognised in “Fair value reserve — non-
recycling” as at 1 January 2018.
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3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3.

HKFRSs (Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

- HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in
HKAS 39 with the ECL model. The ECL model
requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk
associated with a financial asset and therefore
recognises ECL earlier than under the “incurred
loss” accounting model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to the following
items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and bank balances, trade and other
receivables (excluding prepayments and value-
added tax recoverable) and contract assets); and

- contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15.

For contract assets arising from HKFRS 15 and trade
receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach of
recognising lifetime ECL as these items do not have
a significant financing component. For other financial
assets measured at amortised cost, the Group applies a
general approach of recognising ECL. Upon the adoption
of HKFRS 9, the additional ECL on trade and other
receivables (excluding prepayments and value-added tax
recoverable) and contract assets is considered minimal at
the date of initial application (i.e. 1 January 2018).

All financial assets previously measured at amortised
cost under HKAS 39 are continued to be measured at
amortised cost under HKFRS 9. There have been no
changes to the classification or measurement of financial
liabilities as a result of the application of HKFRS 9.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3.
HKFRSs (Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

The reclassifications and remeasurements made to
balances that are not measured at amortised costs
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

PRANHE] M R AMER] BB S

HER|(#)

R-ZB-NF-A-HIEKFEKZ
FEMBERZHTLREIETERE

PSR ()

BB HEEREI 2 M T A (&)

HREAEABBH(ZE—N\F—A—A8)
EHAMBHARKRPERNGEHR(LIFRE
ARG E)MEHR DR R EH T ER AN

position at the date of initial application (1 January 2018) T:
are summarised as follows:
Measurement category Adoption of HKFRS 9
SrEER FEBHRREER R
New 31 December 1 January
Original HKFRS 9 2017 2018
HKAS 39 category  category (HKAS 39) Reclassification Remeasurement (HKFRS 9)
—E-tf 2N\
t=B=t-H —B-H
REBEIENENY HERUBEREE (BHeiEl (BRUHFEER
o] EELEF] $393) BHAE BifiE L)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL T THAL THATL
Non-current financial assets
- other financial assets
FRBCHEE-HiteRERE
Unlisted private equity fund Available-for-sale FVOCI - - - -
financial assets, (non-recycling)
at fair value
FITMARTZES AMESRHER & RAABETAL
R fBE o2 EKE (R a]
2g)
Unlisted equity investments Available-for-sale FVOCI - - 12,545 12,545
financial assets, (non-recycling)
at cost
I ERARE MRMESHER & RAARETAL
KA 2 EKE (R
@)
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3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3.

HKFRSs (Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
and the related “Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers” (hereinafter referred to
as "HKFRS 15") replace HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11
“Construction Contracts”, and several revenue-related
Interpretations.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect
transition method, with the cumulative effect of initial
application recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of accumulated losses at 1 January 2018.
Therefore, comparative information has not been restated
and continues to be reported under HKASs 11 and 18.

In accordance with the transition guidance under HKFRS
15, the Group has only been applied to contracts that are
incomplete as at 1 January 2018.

BRANHE] M R ARMER] B M S

HHER|(#)

R-ZB-NF-A-HIEKFHKZ
FEMBERZHIT LR EBTER
P HRE R (E)

BB B ERE 155 KEEFEH
ZHA S

FEMBHREEAE 155 KRETPEL
Z YN B[ 3 2 7 B 75 i 5 2R R SR 1657 2K
BEFPANZBAZEEES (TR
M mEERF165 ) MAEFE S ER
F18IMA ] B G ERE 1152
LM IRETERARB RE -

AEEDEEFRARBEREBEL @ Tk
RERXEANREREERY S —N\F
— B — B RN EBEHVEHNAE -
It - A ERE R EE | R ERIEES
BETEAFE R REISHTUZERR ©

REFBMBRELERFE 165 2 BRE
5 AEEERARE-_T—N\F—HA—
BHZRIRTEHRZEH)

ZE)\FFER HERERERERAR 111



NOTES TO THE. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B SRR

fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —E— \F+ -A=1+—HIFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3.

HKFRSs (Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

Summary of nature and effect of the changes on
previous accounting policies are set out below:

i Timing of revenue recognition

Previously, revenue arising from provision of
services was recognised over time, whereas
revenue from sale of goods was generally
recognised at a point in time when the risks
and rewards of ownership had passed to the
customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains control of the promised good
or service in the contract. This may be at a single
point in time or over time. HKFRS 15 identifies
the following three situations in which control of
the promised good or service is regarded as being
transferred over time:

a. When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity's performance, as
the entity performs;

b. When the entity’s performance creates or
enhances an asset (for example work in
progress) that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced; or

c. When the entity's performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to
the entity and the entity has an enforceable
right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3.

HKFRSs (Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

I.

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do
not fall into any of these 3 situations, then under
HKFRS 15 the Group recognises revenue for the
sale of that good or service at a single point in
time, being when control has passed. Transfer of
risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the
indicators that is considered in determining when
the transfer of control occurs.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 does not have a
significant impact on when the Group recognises
revenue.

Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

Previously, contract balances relating to service
contracts in progress were presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position under
“amounts due from customers for contract work”
or “amounts due to customers for contract work”
respectively. Deferred income for maintenance
services and deposits from customers and
franchisees were previously under “other payables
and accrued charges”.

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised
only if the Group has an unconditional right to
consideration. If the Group recognises the related
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration for the promised goods and
services in the contract, then the entitlement
to consideration is classified as a contract
asset. Similarly, a contract liability, rather than
a payable, is recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due,
before the Group recognises the related revenue.
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3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3.

HKFRSs (Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

RNFET L R IERT BB
FHER (&)

R-B—N\F—F—BREABKZ

FERMERZFTIRKBITES

B REER (&)

BB IR A E 155 K EFAL

ZWA J(#E)

(Continued)
il. Presentation of contract assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the following
adjustments were made to the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of

. BINEHEEREHIBEE)

RERBEM B REERF 1655
® ATHRBIAR - N\F—
A—BZEA MBI KRR Z

financial position at 1 January 2018. Line items SEMEL - A2 EBESHZEY
that were not affected by the changes have not ERIE B W EF|EERN o
been included.
Carrying
amounts under Carrying
HKASs 11 amounts under
and 18 at 31 HKFRS 15 at 1
December 2017 Reclassification January 2018
R=B—tE+=
A=+—-BREE R-B—NE—F
BETHERE11 — HREBEBIM®
R E18HRWER 5B 1555
HE ERSiba k| Y BR TE 1B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&TT FHET FA&TT
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from EREFELTLE
customers for contract  FKIE
work 7,707 (7,707) -
Contract assets BHEE - 7,707 7,707
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and E A fE T 5008 K TE TR
accrued charges £ 21,934 (8,400) 13,534
Amounts due to ENEFEHIE
customers for contract  zKIE
work 2,217 (2,217) =
Contract liabilities BB E - 10,617 10,617
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3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED

HKFRSs (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs
have been published but are not yet effective, and have
not been adopted early by the Group.

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Leases’
Insurance Contracts®

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation'
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement’

Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint
Ventures'

Definition of a Business®

Definition of Material?
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2021

4 Effective date not yet determined

5 Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or

after 1 January 2020

3.
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3.

116

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3.

HKFRSs (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements
will be adopted in the Group's accounting policy for the
first period beginning on or after the effective date of
the pronouncement. Information on new and amended
HKFRSs that are expected to have impact on the Group's
accounting policies is provided below. Other new and
amended HKFRSs are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 “Leases” replaced HKAS 17 and three related
Interpretations.

As disclosed in note 2.13, currently the Group classifies
leases into finance leases and operating leases and
accounts for the lease arrangements differently,
depending on the classification of the lease. The Group
enters into leases as the lessee.

Once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases.
Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of
the lease, the lessee will recognise a “lease liability”
and a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee would
recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of
the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of
recognising rental expenses incurred under operating
leases on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a
practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the
lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-
value assets, in which case the rental expenses would
continue to be recognised on a systematic basis over the
lease term.
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3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED 3.

HKFRSs (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of land and buildings which are currently
classified as operating leases. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of
the expense recognition in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income over the
period of the lease.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the
Group plans to use the practical expedient to grandfather
the previous assessment of which existing arrangements
are, or contain, leases. The Group will therefore apply
the new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to
contracts that are entered into on or after the date of
initial application.

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019
and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial application
as an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1
January 2019. Comparative information will not be restated.
In addition, the Group plans to elect the practical expedient
for not applying the new accounting model to short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets and not to perform
a full review of existing leases and apply HKFRS 16 only
to new contracts. Furthermore, the Group plans to use
the practical expedient to account for leases for which the
lease term ends within 12 months from the date of initial
application as short-term lease.

BRANHE] M R ARMER] B M S

HHER|(#)

EAMERERZBBYBREERA
(%)
BB EERE 165 THE /(&)

EEMBREENF16FEIBTELE
BERLTHEBFERRBIBR/KERS)
ZEBMAZERENZL - BHERHE
AAEABEHEERABHIBMEN - &
TEHERRR G BRE R EMEE K
RAFERF B o

/

EEPBREENE 16N T —NF—
A—Bs &t < FEMELY - AR
BBV B HMEEAF 16K A - AEEG
SERBALAFGEZATEED L 8
TRAERER(KES)HE - Bt - &%
BESEAMBREEAFIRHEHEL
MERRARBRERB MR ZETLZ

BH o

AEBREER _T-NF—A—BFEH
RIEFTEP T ARRB B BRELLE
165 AR ERERNZBYEERR
H_ZT-NF— A BERBNEHNAE
B AILRERTEET - I - A&EH
BORERTEREDE  THEREEREK
EEEEHEERAHSEN - TR
BFHEETERERS  MEHHAOER
BEVBHRELDNE165F - tbo - XEH
eI AR ITREABESE BRER
HEIEEET 1218 A AR B EARSIERE
HHEE -
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3.

118

ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

As disclosed in note 30, as at 31 December 2018, the
Group’s future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases amount to HK$3,323,000
for land and buildings, the majority of which is payable
within one year after the reporting date. The Group
expects that the adjustments to be made upon the initial
adoption of HKFRS will not be material. However, the
expected changes in accounting policies as described
above could have a material impact on the Group's
financial statement from 2019 onwards.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of a
long lived asset may not be recoverable, the asset may
be considered “impaired” and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets”.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

These assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their
carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such a
decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to
the recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use.

In determining the value in use, expected cash flows
generated by the assets are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant estimation.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment was HK$4,218,000 (2017:
HK$1,156,000) (note 13).

Estimation of impairment of trade receivables,
other receivables and deposits and contract
assets within the scope of ECL upon application
of HKFRS 9

Since the initial adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group makes
allowances on items subjects to ECL (including trade
receivables, other receivables and deposits and contract
assets) based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group's
past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period as set out in note 2.8. As at 31 December
2018, the carrying amounts of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits and contract assets amounted
to HK$6,524,000, HK$13,864,000 and HK$9,456,000
respectively.

BEES AT RAE &)
M BERZEZREE)

EEHYRRBYPWREEZREEA B
EAWOE c EREERSETRER
A MRBEBATHRIR - FHEESRE
AYEEEE - AAREEEIIAEAAEER
M EKRAEERBERET 2R E

st
H o
ZAr

EEEEREERR  ZEEMELZER
RenseRE=RRE  AMFREH
BEAfGE -

R-ZZE—-NE+-A=+—8 ¥ &
BN & E 7 REEA4,218,0008 (=&
—+4F : 1,156,000 7T ) (FHzE13) °

ERAEBMBRELAFISREABE
EEREEANZEREZ R R A
EHFIE - RERENEEZRER
E—t—

BEARNE B BREEFEIFH A
R AEEREEBEELORR KBEHE
BRZBEARIBERIBHEEEEZEE
(BIEEWE SR - H e GE K%
SUAREHNEE)ELBE - FaokiE2.8
Frift - AEBMMEL ZERJLERRE
ATESAREER REAEBBEESE
BEMRERE2HRBRZATEEFEE
HHE - R=ZZE—NF+_A=+—8 -
ERE SRR EMEWKKE - HERE
HEEZRAEED R 46,524,0008 7T
13,864,000/ 7T %2 9,456,000/ 7T °
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4.

120

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Estimation of impairment of trade receivables,
other receivables and deposits and contract
assets within the scope of ECL upon application
of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Before the adoption of HKFRS 9, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that trade and other receivables excluding
prepayments and value-added tax recoverable are impaired.
In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment, the Group takes into consideration the ageing
status and the likelihood of collection by reference to the
repayment history of the debtors, financial condition and
the occurrence of any default or disputes. If the financial
conditions of these parties were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowance will be required. Following the identification
of the doubtful debts, impairment loss will be made for
receivables that are unlikely to be collected. As at 31
December 2017, the carrying amounts of trade receivables
and other receivables and deposits was HK$13,507,000 and
HK$9,076,000 respectively.

When the actual future cash flows are different from
expected, such difference will impact the carrying
amounts of trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits and contract assets.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories of gold and jewellery
products is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of selling products of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result
of changes in customer taste and competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycle.

Management reassesses these estimates at the end
of each reporting period. As at 31 December 2018, the
carrying amount of inventories was HK$64,923,000 (2017:
HK$36,064,000) (note 19).

REVENUE

The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 1
to these consolidated financial statements. The Group's
revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

BEES AT RAE &)

FEZUREFE
BERREEMCFEZAIE2HFERA
FEBBRETOGAEEREERS © %
FHFDRBERTINIAREERRED
EmZELERMEL  YEREFPEH
2B KOs S T R e BR Uk 17 26 0R B P R
M2TEMHmBERES -

BEEENSEBRBREGHZEFHT - B
—E-NE+-_A=+—8 HFEZE
A 8 464,923,000 t( =& — £ F :
36,064,000/ 7T ) (KizE19) °

il

WA

AEBEZ T EXBEZSHEAMBHRERW
AE1HE - AREFAER WA

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FAETT

Sales of gold and jewellery Ee MREEMEE
products 16,257 20,350
Franchise income BRI B URA 302 647
Enterprise software products TEBGER 25,950 26,948
Systems integration RS 4,188 12,631
Professional services HEMRT 50,528 49,598
97,225 110,174
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5. REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of
goods and services over time and at a point in time
in the following major product and services lines and

geographical market:

5. WA
REEFAHNZWADE

AEBATYERE MR R R R IHE T

BERERELZERMEEEE D

HEIRA -

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-2-N\E+-A=t-HLFE

KBRS E

Sales of
gold and Enterprise
jewellery Franchise software Systems Professional
products income products integration services Total
EERHE HIMBE
Em#HE KA LERHER REER BXRB @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR THET THET TET THET THET
Timing of revenue AR
recognition
- Atapointin time  —IRESEZ 16,257 - - 4,188 - 20,445
- Qver time —1REE - 302 25,950 - 50,528 76,780
16,257 302 25,950 4,188 50,528 97,225
Geographical WETHE
markets
- Hong Kong -5 - - 6,493 - - 6,493
-PRC and Taiwan ~ —HE K AE 16,257 302 13,323 4,188 49,551 83,621
- South East Asia o L - - 6,134 - 977 711
16,257 302 25,950 4,188 50,528 97,225

122 Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, have identified the following
products and service lines as operating segments.

Details of which are further described in note 2.20.

6. ToHEH
ARARTEFNEELEREE)EH

Bt TP EE dn M AR SR BIE 2
BRAFHIFE — il M 5E2.20

PO aN
= E0 o

These operating segments are monitored and strategic BB AT EEYE - BERSRTE JIIRE
decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment IRIER 7 D ERIR BT AEEL o
operating results.
2018
—E-N\EFE
Jewellery IT Products and
Products Services Total
ERREER
HKREEM &R st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T FET FHET
Revenue — From external WA —RBINEE
customers 16,559 80,666 97,225
Reportable segment revenue T 2R 5 MUY A 16,559 80,666 97,225
Reportable segment loss HIBR Fr 8B4 Al T 2 )
before income tax o EEE (12,690) (10,520) (23,210)
Interest income F Bz 5 28 33
Depreciation e (740) (112) (852)
Net gain on disposal of HERB AR 2 K
subsidiaries R = 87 87
Loss on disposal of financial HERAREEFA
assets at FVOCI HEh2HEKENE
BB E V1B = (117) (117)
ECL allowance on other H th fE W KT8 2 TR B
receivables EEREIEEE - (126) (126)
Share of results of an By —EEE AR 2
associate i - 175 175
Loss on deemed disposal of BIEHE MBS A
an associate Elpd g - (6,837) (6,837)
Reportable segment assets T2 PEE 315,131 60,656 375,787
Additions to non-current FRRE DI IER
segment assets (other than FEE(ERITE
financial instruments) during KRN
the year 3,927 43 3,970
Reportable segment AEHHEEE
liabilities 28,619 238,590 267,209
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

HIFFE

6. DIER(E)

2017
—T—+F
Jewellery  IT Products and
Products Services Total
BB E MR
KB Em N AR 75 #a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T AT T
Revenue — From external WA —R B 2R P
customers 20,997 89,177 110,174
Reportable segment Al 2| HULA
revenue 20,997 89,177 110,174
Reportable segment HIBRFF BB AT 23/ 5D 3B
(loss)/profit before (B#R),BF
income tax (12,555) 2,055 (10,500)
Interest income F B ER 4 103 107
Depreciation e (330) (94) (424)
Loss allowance on other HthfEUGRIE ~ EriE B
receivables = (10,514) (10,514)
Gain on disposal of a HE BB AR 2 WS
subsidiary - 12,359 12,359
Share of results of an JE(R—FREt & N R 2 45
associate - 5,632 5,632
Reportable segment AE2|ALEE
assets 275,620 61,779 337,399
Additions to non-current FRRED B2 IERBEE
segment assets (2RI BRI
(other than financial
instruments) during
the year 443 172 615
Reportable segment AE2|ABAE
liabilities 28,314 242,546 270,860
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEERE)
The totals presented for the Group's operating segments NEF 7 KRED IR Y| 7 BEBHLT & BT 5
reconcile to the Group's key financial figures as MEMEYN 7 AREE BB EE > HER
presented in the consolidated financial statements are as ORI
follows:
2018 2017
—B-N\F —FLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TE T FATT
Reportable segment assets A 2/OEBEE 375,787 337,399
Eliminated upon consolidation LA ABRR E 8 (224,954) (224,954)
Group assets KEEZEE 150,833 112,445
Reportable segment liabilities AIE2moPartE 267,209 270,860
Eliminated upon consolidation NG | (224,954) (224,954)
Group liabilities rEBzEE 42,255 45,906
The Group's revenue from external customers and its AREBZRAIINBEEWAREIERSE
non-current assets (other than financial instruments) are E(ERTAERBRIN IRy HRE D -
divided into the following geographical areas:
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REMBEF ZWA FREEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-NF —ET—tF —E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THE T T 7T FE T T4
Hong Kong B 6,493 4,612 3,293 7,624
PRC and Taiwan FF B} & & 83,621 96,455 912 1,128
South East Asia =g 7,111 9,107 13 26
97,225 110,174 4,218 8,678
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6.

126

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oHERE)
The geographical location of customers is based on the ZEREME 2 AR IEIREARERS
location at which the services were provided or the WEXNEEERZHEMTE - IEREHE
goods were delivered. The geographical location of the E2ME B ENZEEEERME
non-current assets is based on the physical location of H(EAYME BELZEMS ) ARER
the asset in case of property, plant and equipment and R FTE R (H RS N R B SRR
location of operation in case of interests in an associate = NEEKAMS)ME °
and a joint venture and development costs.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, HK$36,999,000 REBEE-_Z—N\E+_A=+—HItE
or 38% of the Group’s revenue depended on a single E - KEEFW AR 236,999,000 7T 5k
customer in the IT Products and Services segment (2017: BN RKEEMBEEMERB LB E
HK$36,668,000 or 33%). —®P(ZZ—+t 4% :36,668,000/% 7T 3K
33%) °
OTHER INCOME 7. Htlks
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FE T 7T
Interest income T B 33 107
Consultancy and management fee EafIREIE Bz
income 287 360
Net foreign exchange gain P& 5, 5 U 7 - 2,443
Others Hith 135 986
455 3,896
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8.

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging/

8.

MR AT 1S B Al &5 18
MR AT S BATAIRE IR, (TN

(crediting):
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+t5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E T T
Operating lease charges on land  +1h R & F 4450 & & B (M35 (i)

and buildings (note (ii)) 6,088 5,625
Cost of inventories recognised as R AR X HFEEHA

an expense 16,584 27,216
Cost of services rendered (note (i) =2t AR A AN (T EE()) 75,347 67,651
ECL allowance/Loss allowance on E{th fEUW FIE 2 TBHIZ E 18

other receivables (note (ii)) B, 1a s (ML) 126 10,514
Depreciation e 852 424
Net loss on written off/disposal of it HEWE « HEKEE

property, plant and equipment ZFEE 10 -
Net foreign exchange loss P& 5,55 518 (P =)~ (Mezs)

(note (ii))/(gain) 2,015 (2,443)
Auditor's remuneration (note (ii))  AZZXEMEN & (i (i) 1,087 1,011
Notes: BEE
(i) Cost of services rendered included staff costs of (i) R IRIS K AN B 15 8 TR 462,405,000

HK$62,405,000 (2017: HK$55,000,000), which is also BL(=ZZ—+% : 55,000,000/ 7T) °
included in employee benefits expense (note 11). ZeBNEt AMEER/AFEZ (HE11) °
(ii) These balances are included in other expenses. (ii) RERERTTAREMAE -
A
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. MEHMAX
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FAEIT
Current tax — Overseas ENERRH 18 — 41
Current year REE 144 77
(Over)/Under-provision in prior BEFEGRRERE) BETR
years (103) 294
Total income tax expense i85 X 48 %8 41 371
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9.

128

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the
Group had no assessable profits subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of the
PRC, the subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to PRC
enterprise income tax at a rate of 256% during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

9.

RS ﬁ%ﬁi(fm
RBE_T-N\FR_F—tF+-A=
+— EIJtiF HRAREE T EAHAE
AHEHNERBGH - WAL EAFTEF
SRS -

RIBT B Z P SHAR A & ﬂm% EPIEI’JBH
BRARAREBE_FT-—NFR_FT—tF+

—A=+— EJtﬁV/,\T;z$R?25Wof%ﬁiW¢
BBEMEH o

5 91328 R R0 BT TR R 4F POt B SRR
Rz e BT 7 P e MBI R TR AT B
REHE o

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss LREAMERHRIER Y ket EEETTE
at applicable tax rates: R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T
Loss before income tax MRS A EE (23,210) (10,500)
Tax on loss before income tax, BN B TE R ARE R A R a sk
calculated at the rates applicable  E48 72 Fi R+ & 2 MR TS5 B E
to profits or losses in the tax B2 HIA
jurisdiction concerned (3,930) (3,857)
Tax effect of non-deductible AR A S 2 FRIEZ 2
expenses 4,205 4,989
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue tHERRIUA 2 BiIEFE (73) (3,350)
Tax effect of temporary AEREREZRE o HRIETE
differences not recognised (27) 2
Tax effect of tax losses not RERTIEBE 2 HIEFE
recognised 1,571 3,147
Utilisation of tax losses previously 1 F 5 Bl AR HERT: 18 E 18
not recognised (1,602) (854)
(Over)/Under-provision in prior BEFE(GBRRERE) BETR
years (103) 294
Income tax expense FTS R 41 371
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had unrecognised
tax losses of approximately HK$89,275,000 (2017:
HK$97,119,000) to carry forward against future taxable
income. These tax losses do not expire under current
legislation except losses of approximately HK$45,424,000
(2017: HK$52,875,000) which will be expired as follows:

B

R-ZE—NE+-A=+—8  Kx&£BH
RAERFR B E18£89,275,0008 L (— & —
+ 4 : 97,119,000/ T ) A 8 - F{EEK
RIRFERTIA o W EFTBEBRIEIN R
EEWAEEW - MEEEL45,424,000%
TT(ZZF—+4 : 52,875,000/87T) BN T
HIEAR Em

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FAETT

Year of expiry: fE Ay
2018 —T—)\F - 7,139
2019 —E—NF 6,512 6,855
2020 —EFTF 6,093 6,413
2021 —E-—F 18,238 22,415
2022 —=E_ 8,548 10,053
2023 —E-=F 6,033 -
45,424 52,875

10. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the following:

10. BREE

ARAHAAREEREAEEIZAT
A

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Loss =]
Loss for the year attributable to ~ ANAFIHEA AEIRFERER
owners of the Company 23,668 10,387
Number of shares R E
Weighted average number of AR ANAE 39 B (FAR) (B EE())
ordinary shares (in thousands)
i 1,639,424 1,188,460
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10. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

11.

130

Notes:

(i) The 1,639,424,000 ordinary shares are derived from the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2018 after taking
into account the effect of Rights Issue (note 27(i)) being
completed during the year.

(ii) The diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per
share because there were no dilutive potential ordinary
shares in issue during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

10. SREE &)

Bt -

(i)

(ii)

1,639,424, 000k AR KEEHE-F
—NE+—A=+—BHLEEEBETH
LTERMEFHEE - WEFTRFENT
BRAELRS (B EE27(1) ) FO P28 -

HRBE—Z-—NEFR-_T—tF+=
A=+t —BLFEATEEETELER
BEzLRK - ERETBEEASN
FREARERS -

11. BEEARX(BREESHH)

EMOLUMENTS)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T 7T
Wages, salaries and other benefits T#& - & KEigF] 59,377 60,095

Pension costs — defined RIRE A — B RE A RRET 2
contribution plans 10,237 11,081
69,614 71,176
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12. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS AND 12. EEFMREBESHFIMA L

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ 2 5t B

EMOLUMENTS

12.1 Directors’ emoluments 121 EEZHM
Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to EEHFMIORBIBEGEM Em AR -
the GEM Listing Rules, section 383 (1) of the EB RN THERIE 383N E R A 7 (4K
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of BRESNRER) R B2 EN
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about T -

Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Other emoluments

Hit &
Contributions
to defined
Directors’ Salaries and contribution
fees allowances plan Total
TR
ESWE HFERER sTEIR wE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
By & FET FET FET TET
2018 —E-N\E§
Executive directors: H{TEE :
Mr. Chong Yu Ping  HEFL4E - 600 18 618
Ms. Li Xia FTELLT (c) - 951 97 1,048
Mr. Chen Yin BRELE - 535 18 553
Independent BIUFHITES:
non-executive
directors:
Mr. Lam Tin Faat MRESTE 180 - - 180
Ms. Lu Haina b2z + (b) 63 - = 63
Ms. Na Xin BT 22 £ 120 - - 120
Ms. Zhao Xiaxia HEELT (a) 57 - - 57
420 2,086 133 2,639
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B SRR

fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 #Z —E— \F+ -A=1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

12.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

12. EEHFMROEERSHFMAL

25 Mz

121 EEFHME)

Other emoluments

Hih &

Contributions

to defined

Directors’ Salaries and contribution
fees allowances plan Total

TERRE
kN 5o RoER SHEIER HEE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
By s BT BT TAIT T

2017 —E—+F

Executive directors: HTESE :

Mr. Chong Yu Ping  #ET 54 - 600 18 618

Ms. Li Xia TERT (c) - 944 85 1,029

Mr. Chen Yin PREE T4 = 532 18 550

Independent BYFHTES:

non-executive

directors:

Mr. Lam Tin Faat MRELE 180 - - 180

Ms. Lu Haina BEE Lt 120 = - 120

Ms. Na Xin e 120 — - 120
420 2,076 121 2,617

Notes: PtsE -

(a) Ms. Zhao Xiaxia was appointed as an (a) HEELXTR_ZE—/N\E+A
independent non-executive director of the NBEZFEAEARDREIEH
Company on 9 July 2018. =

(b) Ms. Lu Haina resigned as an independent non- (b) g at+tRN_—_ZE—N\E+ A
executive director of the Company on 9 July NEBEARAT B IEGITE
2018. £ O

(c) Ms. Li Xia is also the Chief Executive Officer (c) TELTHRAERRDFITHREA

of the Company and her emoluments disclosed
above include those for services rendered by her
as the Chief Executive Officer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RR I

for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

12. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

12.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017.

There were no arrangements under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

12.2 Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included three
(2017: three) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The

BEEFME AR RS HFMAL
ZEM e

12.1

12.2

EEHME)

BE_Z-)\FL-_FT—tF+=
A=1T—RHLFE  AKELER
EAEENFHFMER/NMARNEHE
EIMAR R EL 2 2R 1F R RE R
e -

BE_Z—\FK_ZF—+F+—
A=+—HLFE  TEBEENE
o R B REEMEH N 5 -

FEEBRSHMA L 2%

FA - AEERERSFHALE
B=2(ZF—t5F : =R)&%
HEFMO A L DT RER - £/
RTRE(ZE—EF: MB) &=

emoluments of the remaining two (2017: two) FMA T ZEBOT ¢
individuals during the year are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Salaries and allowances e KoERL 720 660
Contributions to defined TE BB RETEI K
contribution plan 27 27
747 687
The emoluments fell within the following band: FHENN AT EE -

Number of individuals

BTAH
2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —ZE—+4F
Emolument band: HENEE -
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z2%1,000,000/% 7T 2 2
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

134

13. Y% - BERRE

EQUIPMENT
Computer
Leasehold and office  Furniture and Motor
improvements equipment fixtures vehicles Total
)5
MEMERE  HLER EMREE T Rk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FHAT FHAT FHAT FHAT
At 1 January 2017 RZBE—t&
—H—H
Cost D% 1,785 13,066 6,176 769 21,796
Accumulated ZEERAE
depreciation and i
impairment losses (1,785) (12,813) (5,583) (702) (20,883)
Net book amount REFEE - 253 593 67 913
Year ended 31 BE-_Z2—+F
December 2017 +=A=+-—H
LEE
Opening net book FUREFE
amount - 253 593 67 913
Exchange differences [EX =% - 15 33 4 52
Additions NE 96 96 423 - 615
Depreciation e (28) (102) (271) (23) (424)
Closing net book FRIEEFE
amount 68 262 778 48 1,156

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

13. Y% - BERRE®)

Computer
Leasehold and office Furniture and Motor
improvements equipment fixtures vehicles Total
ER
HEYELEE BOERE REREEB AE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET THET
At 31 December 2017 R=-ZT—+t&
and 1 January 2018 +=HA=+—H
kR=—Z2-N\F
—B—H
Cost [B#N 2,024 12,726 7,033 830 22,613
Accumulated ZEERAE

depreciation and g

impairment losses (1,956) (12,464) (6,255) (782) (21,457)
Net book amount REFEE 68 262 778 48 1,156
Year ended 31 BE-Z-N\F

December 2018 +=A=+-—H

LHFE
Opening net book FYEREFE

amount 68 262 778 48 1,156
Exchange differences BN =% (2) (8) (30) (3) (43)
Additions NG - 54 170 3,746 3,970
Disposal/written off HE /Wi - (10) - - (10)
Disposal of a subsidiary & —EHE R 7]

(note 34) (FifsE34) - (3) - - (3)
Depreciation e (47) (88) (240) (477) (852)
Closing net book FREEEFE

amount 19 207 678 3,314 4,218
At 31 December 2018 R=T—N\F+

—B=1t—8H
Cost (BN 1,946 12,215 6,844 4,529 25,534
Accumulated ZETERAE

depreciation and g

impairment losses (1,927) (12,008) (6,166) (1,215) (21,316)
Net book amount  FREHME 19 207 678 3,314 4,218
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14.

136

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2018 and 2017 are as follows:

14. RHE LR 2 EHE

R_E—NFER—_ZT—+F+-_A=+—
B TENBARZEBOT

Particulars of issued Percentage of
Place/country of and paid up capital/  ownership interest held
Name of company incorporation Place of operation registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
BRORARRA/ FRRFEHE
ARER ERRIHY/ B XY AfEREE EEGzEAM  IEER
Excel (BVI) Limited* British Virgin Islands Hong Kong 5,000 shares of US$1 100%* (2017: 100%¢)  Investment holding
gach
Excel (BVI) Limited* ABRAES B BOORERAEIZL  100%(2F—tF:  RALRK
AU} 100%?)
Excel Consulting and Solutions Sdn. Malaysia Malaysia 100,000 shares of 100% (2017:100%)  Development of
Bhd.* Malaysian Ringgit computer software
("MYR") 1 each and provision of
sale and marketing
services
Excel Consulting and Solutions Sdn. SRED SRAS 100,000 5REESR 100%(Z5—tF: RESKSERERES
Bhd. * BER (5% 100%)  ERWARERK
IRt
Excel Global IT Services (HK) Limited*  Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 Nil (2017: 100%)  Deregistered on 29
March 2018
SRR (BR)RRAR 3 B 100008 B(ZT—tF:100%) BRZT-NF=A=
ThBgEER
Excelink Technology Pte Ltd.* Singapore Singapore Singapore Dollar ("S$") Nil (2017:100%)  Development of
893,022 computer software
and provision of
sale and marketing
services
Excelink Technology Pte Ltd.* s il IMET(EMET))  BCE-tF:100%) FESKUKREES
893,022 ERmB RS
121 Limited* Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$13,001,000 80.1% (2017: 80.1%)  Application services
provider
121 Limited* B B 13,001,000/ 7 80.1% ERRHRHLES

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

14.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

14. RB AR 2= (®)

(Continued)
Particulars of issued Percentage of
Place/country of and paid up capital/  ownership interest held
Name of company incorporation Place of operation registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
BRORARRE/ RREHE
AAER HRRUHY/ B XY AfEAGHE BEZZAMM  TTER
HR21 Limited* Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 93% (2017:93%)  Development of
computer software
and provision
of maintenance
services
HR21 Limited* o B BT B%(ZT-tE:03%) FEEREHREER
Al
World Sky International Limited* British Virgin Islands Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100%F (2017: 100%")  Investment holding
tRERERAT ABRUES B IREBIETIRG 1009 -E—+F:  REER
100%?)
SEARE(RI)ERAA (Hong Kong  PRC PRC HK$127,000,000 (2017: 100% (2017: 100%)  Design and sales of
Jewellery Co.,(Shenzhen) Limited®)** HK$87,000,000) gold and jewellery
products
SRERE (R ERAR hEl hE 127,0000008L(ZF  100%(Z3—tF:  FARBERSRHE
—t4 £87,000,000 100%)  Em
A7)
MIFEBESERZTARLR (Excel  PRC PRC Renminbi (“RMB") 100% (2017: 100%)  Development of
Solution Technology Limited?)** 6,000,000 computer software
and provision
of maintenance
services
MIFERESERZRERAT hEl hE ARB(TARE]) 100%(=F-t%: FRESRUHRRER
6,000,0007C 100%) &R
FRAME(RI)BRAE (Excel Software  PRC PRC HK$20,000,000 100% (2017: 100%) ~ Development of
(Shenzhen| Co., Limited®)** computer software
and provision
of maintenance
services
At (R BRAR hE EP 2000000087 100%(ZF-tF: REEREEREER
100%) &R
SR EANRE (L) ERAA PRC PRC US$1,700,000 100% (2017: 100%) ~ Provision of
(Excel Technology (Shanghai) Co., professional
Limited®)** services and
systems integration
SR EANRR( L) BRAA i ] 1,700,000 100%(Z3-t%: RUSERBRZGE

ZE)\FFER HERERERERAR

100%)
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fof the year ended 31 December 2018 &t —F—F+ -HA=+—

14. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

HIFFE

14. RB AT 2= (®)

(Continued)
Particulars of issued Percentage of
Place/country of and paid up capital/  ownership interest held
Name of company incorporation Place of operation registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
BRORARRE/ FRREHE

AAER HRRUHE/ B XY AMEAGHE EEGZAMN  TTER

FIE R (M) BRA (Excel Global PRC PRC US§70,000  100% (2017: 100%)  Provision of
IT Services (Hangzhou) Limited®)** professional

services

HRANERR (UM BRAA i i 70,000%7T 100%(Z5-t%: RESERE

100%)

) ERRHEBRAERAF (New River  Taiwan Taiwan New Taiwan Dollar 100% (2017: 100%) ~ Provision of
Information Technology & Services ("NTS") 11,913,620 professional
Co services

FIEARBROERAA RE RE HakEatl) 100%(=5-t%: RESERE

11,913,620 100%)
SERERSRUREAOERAR  PRC PRC RMB10,000,000 100% (2017: 100%)  Development of
{Dongguan Excel International Finance computer software
and Technology Incubation Centre and provision
Company Limited®)** of maintenance
services

FEERERERUREPLERAT DE hE ABH10,000,0007 100%(Z3—t%:  RETREMREMER

00%)  &R%

# Issued capital held directly by the Company & AAREERFBEEITRA

Limited liability company
Wholly foreign-owned enterprise

@ The English names of the PRC or Taiwan companies
are translation of their Chinese names for identification
purpose only and are not their official names

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

14.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

14.

The following table lists out the information relating
to the subsidiaries of the Group which have material
non-controlling interests (“NCI"). The details and the
summarised financial information, before intragroup

eliminations, are as follows:

RB AR 2= (®)

TRHIIAEEMNB IR ZHEBEER
ZERRIEEEAIFFEERS (T IR
@)  ARAFBRMBERBMECRETE
BARRREFE)EIIAT

2018
—E-N\HF

i21 Limited HR21 Limited

HK$°000 HK$°000

FE T FH&T

NCI percentage IEERER A DL 19.9% 7%

Current assets mENE E 831 6,452

Non-current assets IERBEE = 20

Current liabilities mEEE (40,804) (7,294)

Net liabilities BEFHE (39,973) (822)

Carrying amount of NCI FEPE R 2 BREE (1,711) 396

Revenue PN - 6,493

Profit/(Loss) for the year FREFl (E18) 2,217 (324)

Total comprehensive income/ 2ERA ()45

(expense) 2,217 (324)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to NCI SRR AR RS B (R 235 A (18 ) 441 (23)

Dividend paid to NCI BT IR AR e 2 AR B = =
Cash flows used in operating KEEFHTRAZRERE

activities (5) (3,241)
Cash flows used in investing KEETHMBEZIRERE

activities - (22)

Cash flows from financing
activities

MERDAELECRERE

T\ FFHR HEERERERAR
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14.

140

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

14. RB AT 2= (®)

(Continued)
2017
—ET—+t5F
i21 Limited HR21 Limited
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FE 7T
NCI percentage R ERBE DL 19.9% 7%
Current assets mENEE 818 16,422
Non-current assets EMEBNEE - 2
Current liabilities mEIAE (43,008) (16,922)
Net liabilities BEFE (42,190) (498)
Carrying amount of NCI SEFE R 2 BREE (2,152) 419
Revenue A - 6,995
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(EE),SEF (10) 96
Total comprehensive (expense)/  2HE (), WA L858
income (10) 96
(Loss)/Profit attributable to NCI JEFERR RS FE(R 2 (18) w7 (2) 6
Dividend paid to NCI BT IR AR AR B = -
Cash flows from operating CEEYMEEZIRERE
activities 20 1,561
Cash flows from investing KREGHEEZRERE
activities - 39

Cash flows from financing
activities

BELBFELECHEERE
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for the year ended 31 December 2018 2 —ZE— \F+_-A=+—HIFFZ

15.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

15. R—EBHE QT 2ER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T8 T FHET
Cost of investment in an associate &4 —RH & A 72 KA = 5131
Share of post-acquisition results  JE(GUREEE v 2E R HMEE
and other comprehensive Wz - BREWARE
income, net of dividends
received - 2,391
Share of net assets EIEEEFE - 7,522
Notes: Hia -
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2018, an existing (a) BE_Z—N\F+-_A=+—HIHF

shareholder of Excel Technology International (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Excel HK"”), Passion Investment (BVI)
Limited, has subscribed for 18,000 new ordinary shares
of Excel HK ranking pari passu with existing shareholders
at a consideration of HK$1,800,000 (the “Subscription”).
The Subscription was completed on 29 March 2018
(the “Completion”). Upon the Completion, the Group's
interests in Excel HK was decreased from 50% to 5%.
The Group has accounted for the 5% interests in Excel
HK as financial asset at FVOCI (non-recycling) (note 17)
whose fair value at the date of deemed disposal was
HK$860,000. This transaction has resulted in a loss on
deemed disposal of an associate recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2018, as follows:

B EBHFEERES)ERAA
([FBBE]) 2 —%EAF/RFEPassion
Investment (BVI) Limited R EEHE
7518,0008% B1 IR B X = B R S &9
LB - R {E51,800,000/8 ([ R
BEE]) REFHER-T—N\F=
AZ=+hBZEK([7ERK]) - RFEKE -
REBREREBZEZH0%HE
5% o NEEFRERB B 25% e A
RREANBEFAREMEEKENS
BEE(TAEE) (MiaE17) - HRAGRIE
& B A 4 [E18/4860,000/8 T °
HE-_ZT-—\F+-_A=+—BL*F
E ' ZRSEYNEEEREIELE—
SliEElNG ol 551 =5

HK$'000
T
Fair value of investment retained (5%) {REBRE(B%)Z AL BE 860
Less: carrying amount of 50% W NEREAFENEH50%E
investment on the date of loss BZEEE
of significant influence (7,697)
Loss on deemed disposal of an BIERE BB Z AR 2 EE
associate (6,837)
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fof'the year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —FE— /\F+-A=+—HIFFZ

15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (cContinved) 15. R—EEE AT 2R (&)

Notes: (Continued) Wit - (4&)

(b) Particulars of the Group’s unlisted associate, having a (b) AEEEZ®RABAA T _A=T—AKR
reporting date of 31 December, whose quoted market —E—tE+-_A=t—"BEMBRE
price is not available as at 31 December 2017 are as ZIEEMBE AR BT ¢
follows:

Percentage of
Place of Particulars of interest held
Form of business incorporation and  issued and paid indirectly by the
Name of associate structure operation up capital Company Principal activities
R R ERTREHRE  AAREERS
BE N R B ES TV R B RAFEE BRAML TEER
Excel HK Incorporated Hong Kong HK$4,873,889 50% Development of computer
software, systems
integration and the provision
of maintenance services
TRER B2V BB 4,873,889/ L 50% REBMIMREGEKARE
HRE R

As at 31 December 2017 and up to the date of the
Completion, Excel HK is accounted for an associate
as the Group has the power to appoint two out of five
directors of Excel HK despite the Group's equity interest
in Excel HK is 50%. Following resignation of directors
appointed by the Group, significant influence over
Excel HK is lost on the date of the Completion. Excel
HK is a strategic partner for the Group's growth in the
development of computer software and the provision
of systems integration, professional services and
maintenance services through its expertise.
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15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continuved) 15. R—EEE QAT 2R (&)

Set out below are the summarised financial information
of the Group’s associate, Excel HK, which are accounted
for using the equity method:

AEBERARSEARZBERRERE
AUBEMBERIIT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#E T T
Non-current assets FERIEE N/A 340
TEA
Current assets mENEE N/A 76,238
TEA
Current liabilities mEaE N/A (61,535)
NEA
Net assets BEEE N/A 15,043
TEA
From
1 January
2018 to
29 March 2018
(date of
Completion) 2017
R=Z-—N\F
—A—R=&E
—E-NF
=ZA=+hH
(SER B ) —ET—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
Revenue WA 28,648 133,970
Profit for the period/year and total B &R N RERK ER2EH
comprehensive income for the WA Me5E
period/year 350 11,063
Dividend received from the B B N R A AR B
associate - -
Group's share of results of the BN, FARNEE RGBS AR
associate for the period/year RS 175 5,632
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15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued) 15. R—EEE AT 2R (&)

A reconciliation of the above summarised financial Lt ZH B ER AR EBEBIRE IR
information to the carrying amount of the investment in HEEZEHENT -

Excel HK is set out below:

2018 2017
ZEB-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Total net assets of the associate  Bf'& /N 7 & E/FHERRE N/A 15,043
TEA
Proportion of the ownership AREBFFEMAERERZADL
interest held by the Group N/A 50%
TiE H
Carrying amount of the interest in A& A RIS ELR S P HRE
the associate in the consolidated 7 BREE
financial statements N/A 7,522
TEA
16. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 16. R—EEeELE R
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+t
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T T
Cost of investment in a joint HE—HAEELEZHA = -
venture
Share of post-acquisition results  E{HWER 7 ZE LR EMEE
and other comprehensive WA - HIBREWAR B
income, net of dividends
received = -
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16.

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 16. N—RaEbEZRHE )
(Continued)
In August 2018, a subsidiary of the Group has established RZE—NFNA AEF—HBHREAR
a joint venture named as Shenzhen Yu Tak Jewellery Co., RIEBYE=ZAFLBEERIEEDE
Ltd with an independent party, Mr. Zhu Jun. Pursuant to Y HERE BB AT - BIBEA LN
the joint venture agreement, the total registered capital 2= BTl EKRAE AR 13,000,000
is RMB13,000,000 (approximately HK$14,820,000), 7t( 414,820,000 L) Hh AR
among which, RMB12,350,000 and RMB650,000 12,350,000 7T & A & # 650,000 JT( 4
(approximately HK$14,079,000 and HK$741,000) will be 14,079,000 7T % 741,0007% 7T ) # 5 5
contributed by the subsidiary of the Group and Mr. Zhu HAEENB AR RAKRELEERE - AR
Jun, respectively. As all decisions about the relevant FREEESTEOARTEYBK I
activities require unanimous consent of the controlling AT—HRAE @ BAilt - NEBRBENZFEY]
parties, accordingly, the Group accounted for its interest HEREARARINESIEASLDEA
in Shenzhen Yu Tak Jewellery Co., Ltd as a joint venture. B - N_ZE—N\E+-_A=+—H K&
As at 31 December 2018, both the subsidiary of the BB AT REKELEHANES S %
Group and Mr. Zhu Jun had not yet contributed any AEANEMER - BEERRENFBEIR
capital investment in the joint venture and details of the MisE31 ©
capital commitment are set out in note 31.
Particulars of the Group’s unlisted joint venture, having REFEZFBH AT —_BA=1Tt—"HBEA =
a reporting date of 31 December, whose quoted market - N\F+ZA=+—"BEMSREIE
price is not available as at 31 December 2018 are as IEECEZFHBLOT
follows:
Percentage of
Form of Place of Particulars interest held
business incorporation of registered indirectly by the Principal
Name of joint venture  structure and operation  capital Company activities
LA R AARBERE
SELEER EREET R R B M EARFEE BREo FEEE
RYEEREFRA Co-operative joint PRC RMB 13,000,000 95% Wholesaling
A] (Shenzhen Yu Tak venture and retailing
Jewellery Co., Ltd)® of gold,
platinum,
diamond,
karat gold,
jade and
jewellery
products
RINEHERERR A A BlERERE Hh AR %% =EE HE - #
13,000,0007¢ f K& %
BRRIKEEm
Mt ERTE
@ The English name of the PRC company is translation of ® ZHBERRZEXEBIEZEAEESRX

its Chinese name for identification purpose only and is
not its official name.
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16. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 16.

(Continued)

Shenzhen Yu Tak Jewellery Co., Ltd is a strategic
investment for the Group's growth in the sales of gold
and jewellery products in the PRC market.

Set out below are the summarised financial information
of Shenzhen Yu Tak Jewellery Co., Ltd which is
accounted for using the equity method:

R—EEeEbEERS 2

AYBEREARARSAKREZBREK
B BERNTEmEHEES MREESD
RASETRER -

RAEREARZRYIEEKERFR A A
MIEERBEHINT

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
TF#ET
Current assets mENE E 541
Current liabilities MEEE (982)
Net liabilities FRE (441)
Included in the above assets and liabilities: 3t A FitEEREE :
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 28
From
2 August
2018 (date of
establishment)
to 31 December
2018
R=Z—N\F
NA=H
(PR3 B HA)
BE-E-N\F
+=HA=+-—H
HK$'000
FE T
Revenue Wzs =
Other expenses HEF 419
Loss for the year and total comprehensive  FREE K& BN 2 M5 S 4258
expense for the period 419
Unrecognised share of loss for the period  REERFE(L AR EE R EIR 25118
and accumulated losses as at period end 398
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17. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

17. EtERmEE

2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T 7T
Financial assets at FVOCI (non- BEAREBEFAHMGEZERENS
recycling) AEE (T EE)
Unlisted private equity fund FELEMAABRERES = =
Unlisted equity investments IE LTI E (FizE(c))
(note (c)) 11,926 -
11,926 =
Available-for-sale financial assets, A{HESRMEE - BAAEBE
at fair value
Unlisted private equity fund FEMRUAREES = -
Available-for-sale financial assets, AI{tHEELRMEE & BHA
at cost
Unlisted equity investments IELEMRAIZE
Cost (D% - 3,900
Less: provision for impairment B RERE - (3,900)
11,926 =

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

All of available-for-sale financial assets were reclassified
to financial assets at FVOCI (non-recycling) upon the
initial application of HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018, see
note 3 in details.

As disclosed in note 15(a), upon the Completion, the
Group has accounted for the 5% interests in Excel
HK as financial asset at FVOCI (non-recycling) at fair
value of HK$860,000. On 31 August 2018, the Group
disposed the 5% interests in Excel HK whose fair value
at the date of disposal was HK$1,040,000 at a cash
consideration of approximately HK$923,000, resulting in
a loss on disposal of HK$117,000.

As at 31 December 2018, the amount represented the
fair value of 10% interests in a unlisted private entity,
incorporated in the PRC, which is principally engaged in
development of computer software, property leasing and
property management services.

(b)

(c)

T\ FFHR HEERERERAR

FAAHEESREER —2—\F—
A—BRYREREEHBRELAES
RRENOBERAABEMNAL MBS
ARENSREE(TEE)  #ER
BFES -

BT 15 TR E - REKE - K
EEBREEBBZb%ERUARAE
{E860,000/8 T AR BIEA R EETA
EtrEkanemEE(CTrgE) -
RZZFE—NENA=+—8  x5H
PERSEEES 2% #EH(NEER
HE A A2 B8 51,040,000 7T) » &
KRB A#923,0008 7L + EENEEIE
117,000/ T °©

RZZE-N\F+-A=+—H  ZEH
R —RHIELEMALAEEA10% RN
AREE - ZEBNHEEMAT - =
ZNEFEAERRMG  WEEERY
EEHER -
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18.

19.

148

DEVELOPMENT COSTS 18. B A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
& T FHE T

At 1 January and 31 December W—HF—HEK+=-HA=+—H

Cost % 7,052 7,052
Accumulated amortisation S e (7,052) (7,052)
Net book amount REFE - -

The development costs represented all direct costs
incurred in the development of enterprise software
products and were fully amortised in prior years.

FABKASRBECERTMERSES 2P
EEEER  UWERUEFE2HEY -

INVENTORIES 19. FE&
2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FA&TT

Gold and jewellery products: EERKEEM !

Raw materials ERE - 310
Work in progress TR 79 500
Finished goods RURY 63,362 33,569
Packing materials BEME 1,482 1,685
64,923 36,064
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20. CONTRACT ASSETS AND 20. EHNEEREHNERE

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

20.1 Contract assets 20.1 EHEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Contract assets arising from REEHNEEZENEE
service contracts 9,456 -

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect transition
method and adjusted the opening balances as at 1
January 2018.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts
previously included as “Amounts due from
customers for contract work"” were reclassified to
contract assets.

The balance of contract assets as at 1 January
2018 is HK$7,707,000, in which HK $3,907,000
was transferred to trade receivables during the
year.

The balance of contract assets is expected to be
recovered within one year.

T\ FFHR HEERERERAR

AEERRERTEM B RS L
AIFE O M B EM SRS ERIF 5
SRRBRFEZEBREL - AH—
T N\E—- - B0BIEHREL

EEE2O
o T

RERMB B RELERFE 165
& LA AIBEEFAHTIZ
REINSBEEFDBEAGNEE -

RZE-—NFE—HA—H &68&
B &8 57,707,000 T 0 H &
3,907,000 TTE R FNE R EfE
WE ZERF o

BHEEAKERSN —FANK
[B] o
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20. CONTRACT ASSETS AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

20.2 Contract liabilities

20. SHEEREHNERE®)

20.2 EHAEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T 7T
Contract liabilities arising from FBWEBLIRR Z RGE LEE
service contracts from billings Z&%&E&E
in advance of performance 7,935 —
Contract liabilities arising from $4E&RFEWFRIBE 42
receipts in advance of sales aHaE
of goods 1,350 -
9,285 =

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect transition
method and adjusted the opening balances as at 1
January 2018.
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20. CONTRACT ASSETS AND
CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

20.2 Contract liabilities (Continued)

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts under
“Amounts due to customers for contract work”
and amounts previously included as “Deferred
income for maintenance services” and “Deposits
from customers and franchisees” under “Other
payables and accrued charges” were reclassified
to contract liabilities.

When the Group receives a deposit before the
production or sales activity commences or services
perform, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the start of a contract until the revenue recognised
on the project or sales exceeds the amount of the

20.2

20. SHEERGHNEG®E)

EREEE)

REMBEM G RELERE 165
% TENEFPAHIEFEIEAT
R B8 ST RTRT AT B A 508 I
BIREM A TRERSE ZRLER
AIRIREFEFEAEFFNBERZEZ
T INEREFOBEEANAIE -

EARERLEERHEEHFTIEK
RERBATERIZE - MEREHD
REKELSHNAE  EEREHR
Sk HE R M ABBIZ S S8 °

deposit.
Movement in the contract liabilities balances: SN BEESNES
2018
=E-N\F
HK$'000
T
Balance at 1 January R—A—HW&ES 10,617
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result FRIERT AFIE LB EH
of recognising revenue during the WABHENEERD
year that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year (9,459)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result RIEBATEUEE R RIEES @
of billing in advance of performance TEWRIEB A KB EIE N
of services and receipts in advance of
sales of goods 8,195
Exchange differences MEH ZRE (68)
Balance at 31 December R+-—A=+—HH4&E% 9,285

The balance of contract liabilities is expected to
be settled within one year.
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

1. BRE SR

2018 2017

—2-n\% —T—t5

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FHEIT

Trade receivables FEUE FER IR 6,524 13,613
Less: ECL allowance/loss B TEEAE BRI RE B ERE

allowance - (106)

6,524 13,507

Trade receivables for IT Products and Services are due
within 0 — 60 days (2017: 0 — 60 days) from the date of
billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 90 days
overdue are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted.

The Group's sales of gold and jewellery products
comprised mainly cash sales and credit card sales to
retail customers and credit sales to franchisees which
are due within 0 — 60 days from the date of billing.

The directors of the Group considered that the fair values
of trade receivables are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these balances have short
maturity periods on their inception.

Based on the invoice dates (or date of revenue
recognition if earlier), the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables, net of ECL allowance (2017: net of loss
allowance), was as follows:
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BB E R IR < R A E 5 8RR
BRAEFAZEATH(ZZ—tF: TERX
THRIRIE - AN BeNL TR ZE
BACEBEEMAREELERRIIBER
E—FEE -

AEEZHGRREBERFEETZERER
ZEEPZRTHERERRHEE - UK
ARFFINBERZEEHE  EEHa%E
BEZENTEAZIH -

AEBEERARWE SRR SEBRR

R BREEBZANBERAKREEY
BERER -

BEZZEH(R KM AERABHR
) ERESEF(CHREHEESE
BE) (—T—tF  CHBREBERER) ZE
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. EREZRRX#)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FATT
0 - 30 days 0 — 30H 6,017 12,099
31 - 60 days 31 — 60H 438 1,042
61 — 90 days 61 — 90H - 135
Over 90 days HiE90 H 69 231
6,524 13,507

The movement in the ECL allowance (2017: loss
allowance) of trade receivables is as follows:

KRB ZEFRBHEEERREB(ZF—t
FOBERE) ZEHIT

2018 2017

—2-N\% —E—t4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FB T

Balance at 1 January R—A—Bz#&s% 106 99
Exchange differences ME =5 - 7
Written off i 85 (106) -
Balance at 31 December RT+-—A=1+—HB2z%&% - 106
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22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 22. HiEWFIE - RERFEN

AND PREPAYMENTS Hig

2018 2017

=EF-N\F —E T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T F&7T

Other receivables (note (i) B A e U I (M EEG)) 3,819 2,244

Deposits bigeia 740 822

Amount due from former FEURATEE & A7),/ Bit A RIFRIA

associate/associate (note (ii)) (B &E(i)) 8,422 6,010
Amount due from joint venture FEUT & 12 2RAE (M)

(note (ii)) 883 -
Prepayments TERTRIE 6,688 10,590
Value-added tax recoverable Al Ui [B] 1 (E 7 6,103 1,148

26,655 20,814

154

Notes:

(i) The movement in the ECL allowance (2017: loss (i)
allowance) of other receivables is as follows:

Hip R R BEMEEEERE(=F
—tF  BEBE) ZEHMT

2018 2017

—E-)N\F —F—+tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FHTT

Balance at 1 January R—A—B2&% 10,514 =
ECL/Loss allowance recognised  FRERZFEHEEEIE EEEE

during the year 126 10,514

Balance at 31 December R+-—A=1+—Bz&# 10,640 10,5614

(ii) The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and (ii)

repayable on demand.

The directors of the Group considered that the fair values
of other receivables, deposits and prepayments are not
materially different from their carrying amounts because

these balances have short maturity periods on their

inception.
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23.

24.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Included in cash and bank balances of the Group is
HK$13,741,000 (2017: HK$11,676,000) of bank balances
denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC.
RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that
are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group was granted by its third party suppliers credit
periods ranging from 30 days to 60 days. Based on the
invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the trade payables
were as follows:

23.

24.

BERBITER

AEE RS RIBITHEREIE13,741,000
BT(ZZEE—+4F 11,676,000/ 7T)7F
WA BEEREITUARBEZRITE
e AREATAIERELBREE  RiET
Bl 2 HNE H I E R IG0I RAEE - SE R
FEARHIARE - AEETEEBBERE
TTHNE BB ER 2 SRITHE AR X AN
ilﬁé} °

FEf+ & 5 AR X

FZTRERGETASEZEERN T =
THERTH  -REZZAH - BHES
R BRER DATIAT -

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET 7T

0 — 30 days 0 — 30H 422 981
Over 90 days @90 H 150 159
572 1,140

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values
of trade payables are considered to be a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

EZBYBRENMNE  AtENESK
RZEMERERAABEIRENR -
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25.

26.

156

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 25.

Htt BRI REARERER

CHARGES
2018 2017
=EF-N\F —E T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T I
Deferred income for maintenance %% IR 2 IEIEUL A (FTEE())
services (note (i) - 6,843
Deposits from customers and REFFREFMNERZ2ZE
franchisees (note (i)) (B=EG) - 1,657
Other payables o fth fE (S RIB 7,249 8,469
Accrued charges TERREH 4,317 5,065
11,566 21,934
Notes: B aE

(i) As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, deferred
income for maintenance services and deposits from
customers and franchisees are included in contract
liabilities and disclosed in note 20.2 (see note 3).

(ii) All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values
of other payables and accrued charges are considered to
be a reasonable approximation of fair value.

ANMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS 26.

The amounts due to directors are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. A&
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
1281 B FET E ! TET
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of BREEET
HK$0.1 each 2 &k
At 1 January and 31 R—A—Bk
December +—-A=+—H 5,000,000,000 500,000 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRER
At 1 January m—H—H 1,188,460,000 118,846 1,188,460,000 118,846
Rights Issue (note (i) #ER% (BiT=E()) 594,230,000 59,423 = =
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,782,690,000 178,269 1,188,460,000 118,846
Notes: BiRE :

(i)

(ii)

In March 2018, the Company issued and allotted
594,230,000 ordinary shares pursuant to the completion
of rights issue on the basis of one rights share for every
two existing shares held by the qualifying shareholders
on 27 February 2018 at the subscription price of HK$0.10
per rights share (“Rights Issue”). The gross proceeds of
the Rights Issue of approximately HK$59,423,000 was
credited to share capital of the Company. Share issuance
expenses that are directly attributable to the issue of
new shares amounting to approximately HK$2,470,000
was accounted for as a deduction against the share
premium account.

The holder of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company's residual assets.

(i)

(ii)

T\ FFHR HEERERERAR

RZZF—N\F=F ' ARAENR_F—
NEZAZTLEAERRESHEER
&3R5 AR 10 1 2 — AR AR AR 1) 2 B2
BRI HER% 2 FEAK LA B AR A% A% 1 0. 1078
TC 2 REBE 1T R AL 594,230,000 /%
AR (TR ]) - iR Z FR1S sRIB B EE
#)59,423,0008 LB sT AR A RIEA ©
BITHRO EEREZROETRAZY
2,470,000 T ABR ARG #E R 2
BIE e

EBEFEAAREBRTREIR 2R
8 BERRARBGH LR SREN
B—F - AEBRYEAARZHGE
EFBREHM -
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28. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

28. D E) AR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+t5F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FHET FHE T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries AN - =
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments TERIE 205 659
Amounts due from subsidiaries  JEULHI B A T FRIE 68,829 44,698
Cash and bank balances He MIRITIER 5,586 7
74,620 45,364
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued E b e OB K FEIRE A
charges 1,621 2,217
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAHI B A Rl FUR - 64,753
Amounts due to directors EESRIE 20,785 20,538
22,406 87,508
Net current assets/(liabilities) REIEE (AE)FE 52,214 (42,144)
Total assets less current EEABERABEE
liabilities 52,214 (42,144)
Net assets/(liabilities) BE /(A FE 52,214 (42,144)
EQUITY iz ¥
Share capital A% 7 27 178,269 118,846
Reserves & 29(a) (126,055) (160,990)
Total equity/(Capital IRIEAEE S (EARE4H)
deficiencies) 52,214 (42,144)
Li Xia =] Chong Yu Ping BEY
Director = Director
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29. RESERVES

(a) The movement of the Company’s reserves
are as follows:

29. &

(a) ZAAFZHEEBHMT :

Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
R RE REtEE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FA&T
(note 29(b))
(Hi5E29(b))
At 1 January 2017 R—_ZE—tF—HA—H 220,438 (333,101) (112,663)
Loss for the year and total FREEKRFEARN2EH
comprehensive expense S4B
for the year = (48,327) (48,327)
At 31 December 2017 and WR-ZT—+F+_H
1 January 2018 =t+—BXk
—T—)\F
—H—H 220,438 (381,428) (160,990)
Issue of ordinary shares on AR AT L WBAR
Rights Issue (note 27(i)) (FtzE27()) (2,470) - (2,470)
Profit for the year and total £ A% Fl| R A2 HE
comprehensive income I A 4258
for the year - 37,405 37,405
At 31 December 2018 R=-T—-N\E+=A8
Eqr=[E 217,968 (344,023) (126,055)
(b) Share premium (b) PRiDEE
The application of the share premium account BaER2ERS ENRE
is governed by section 40 of the Bermuda % EE e

Companies Act.
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30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 30.

31.

32.

160

At the reporting date, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of land and buildings payable by the Group are
as follows:

REHERE

RERBH - AEERBENATHHE LS
HERLHMEEYKEAEZHZERS
RRARERD LA T HARE 2 A5

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+t5F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T T

Within one year —&FR 2,987 5,680
In the second to fifth years FE_FERF 336 2,270
3,323 7,950

The Group leases the land and buildings under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to
three (2017: one to three) years, with an option to renew
the lease and renegotiate the terms at the expiry dates
or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group
and respective landlords. None of the leases include
contingent rentals.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

In August 2018, a subsidiary of the Group has entered
into a joint venture agreement with an independent
third party to establish a joint venture in the PRC,
Shenzhen Yu Tak Jewellery Co., Ltd, with registered
capital of RMB13 million. Pursuant to the joint venture
agreement, the Group is committed to contribute capital
of RMB12,350,000 before 31 December 2028.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE
CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had provided
guarantee for the former associate (2017: the associate),
Excel HK to a third party, in respect of all monies owed
by and/or the obligations and liabilities of Excel HK to
the third party under a service contract to the extent
of HK$213,000 (2017: HK$3,331,000). At 31 December
2018 and 2017, no provision for the Group’s obligation
under the guarantee contract has been recognised as
there was no amount due by Excel HK to the third party
and the directors considered that it was not probable
that the service obligations to be performed by Excel HK
would not be met.
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31.

32.

ARERBEEEHOBE L RREY -
MOZNMPHERR—FE=F(=F—*
F—FE2ZF) WHEREEROWBEH
HAKEEAAETHBWREZ B HER]
MA R EFZ]GK - HOBARIERA
e -

BAXEE
R-T—\EN\A - SEE-EHBAR

BV E=HRINAEHE + R B
TAEEPERINEERSER AT - M
EAREARE13,000,0007T ° BIEA L H
& ASEERER-ZE-NF+ZA=T
—HAEE ARE12,350,0007T °

BBREREN

R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—8 X&EH
CRMAEERR(ZE—+4F : EQA])
ERBBRE —DREEOMERNT—2
BZAZARZR/SETREE
ABEERERZeE = AiRESBEERA
213,000 L( = ZF —+ 4 : 3,331,0007%
TI)ZER - -R_ZE—NER_FT—tF
+ZA=+—H AREBE BT EFIE
HERZBE=F  BEREZRETBES
TR BEBITEERBET - I HE
MAKBREBEZNDERGNZEEELE
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. ABAIRS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed B 7S s AR BT ER
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, 5 BEN - ERANEE IR BT
during the year, the Group had the following material UTEARS :

transactions with related parties:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
Name of related parties Nature of transactions HK$’'000 HK$'000
B £ REME TET TAET
Companies in which the directors of the
Company have interests
ARRESHARR DA
- Hangzhou Didi Commercial Showcases Purchase of showcases for the
Company Limited* Mi/l@mXEABRA  brand H.K. JEWELRY - 224
] (“Didi Showcases”) (notes a, d)
—MEEEERARRAR(EaEA]) (M BEEAKERECEE
ia ~d)
— Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Company Operating lease charges on land
Limited* RITEERE &R NODBRA A and building 2,493 2,386
("Shenzhen Yihua") (notes b, d)
—MMEEREHROHARAR(NRIE THREFLEHAEER
# |)(MizEb ~ d)
Sales of gold and jewellery
products 203 105
HEBSRAEER
Former associate/(2017: Associate)
AEENE/ (ZE—CF - BERR)
- Excel HK (note c) Professional fee received 9,238 36,668
—EBEB(MiEc) BEREEER
Professional fee paid 1,496 12,055
ENZEXER
Purchase of complementary
hardware and software - 12,014
BERERERES
Administration expenses
reimbursements 360 1,440
THF X fE
Staff cost reimbursements 147 425
BIHAHE
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

162

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Didi Showcases is owned as to 100% by Hangzhou Didi
Investment Joint Stock Company Limited* (1)1 &
& BRAF]), which in turn is owned as to 90% by Mr.
Lin Feifei, who is a shareholder of the Company as at 31
December 2018 and 2017.

Shenzhen Yihua is a shareholder of the Company as at
31 December 2018 and 2017 and is ultimately controlled
by Mr. Chong Yu Ping, an executive director of the
Company.

The amounts represented the related party transactions
with Excel HK from 1 January 2018 up to the date of
Completion (2017: from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2017).

The above related party transactions also constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

These transactions were conducted in the Group’'s normal
course of business and at mutually agreed prices and terms.

The English names of the PRC companies are translation
of their Chinese names for identification purpose only
and are not their official names.
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B o

(b) R N\FR-_ZT—tF+-_A=+
—H - RYEERBARBZKRE - WH
RARITESHE L LERRES ©
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

34.

Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel remuneration includes the
following expenses:

33. B F (&)

TEEBAEMSE
I2EEAEMEBE TR

2018 2017

—2-N\E —F—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Short term employee benefits EHESER 2,506 2,496
Post employment benefits EER iz EA 133 121
2,639 2,617

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 7 November 2018, the Group disposed
of the entire interest in Excel Technology
International (BVI) Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary, to an independent third
party at a cash consideration of HK$1,480,000,
which is subsequently settled after the end
of reporting period. The gain on disposal, net
liabilities disposed of (which included other
payables of HK$4,000) and net cash outflow
arising on disposal at the date of disposal were
approximately HK$1,484,000, HK$4,000 and nil,
respectively.

On 11 December 2018, the Group disposed of
the entire interest in Excelink Technology Pte
Ltd., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, to an
independent third party at a cash consideration of
HK$1,000,000.

34. HEWB AT

(a)

RZZFE—NF+—AtH &
EFRABYE=FLERNBE
%= & [f B A " Excel Technology
International (BVI) Limited /) &
B - ReMRER1,480,000%8
UL - BEREREEREHRERE
“E - MRNHERH HEWKE -
HEZAEEFE(BREREMENR
TH4,0008 L) R HEEEZRE R
HFEE 9 Al 2 491,484,0008 7T
4,000 RE o

RZZE-NFE+_A+—HB =K
EEMBYE=FLERMES
& MJ /B 2 Bl Excelink Technology
Pte Ltd. W2 #i#Ea - HERER
1,000,000/ 7T °
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

164

34. HEWEB AT (&)

HK$'000
T
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which HRHECZBAEEGIECEEREBDIT:
control was lost at the date of disposal:
Cash and bank balances /e RIRITFK 2,836
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEE 3
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 BR 5k % E At FE U IR 961
Other payables and accrued charges HEMEMRIBERTERER (266)
Trade payables FERTE 5 RFK (68)
Contract liabilities EHEE (1,081)
Net assets disposed of HEZEEFRE 2,395
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—BKEATEE :
Consideration receivable FEURE 1,000
Net assets disposed of HECEEFE (2,395)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of kEMEB A RIRHIERGRESHHE S
net assets of the subsidiary reclassified from Bm s MB AR EEFERBRER
equity to profit or loss on loss of control of =R
the subsidiary (2)
Loss on disposal HEEE (1,397)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEELECRESRHEBE
Consideration received in cash and cash WER & KA EEBYWARE
equivalents -
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HEZRESRIESEEY (2,836)
(2,836)
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(c)

On 18 January 2017, the Group disposed of Excel (c)
System (Beijing) Limited to an independent third

party at a cash consideration of HK$2,000,000.

34. HEWEB AT (&)

RZE—+tF—A+NB » xEE
AR & K& 2,000,000/& T I — &
BYE=ZFHEREREER

BRAFA °
HK$'000
T
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which RHEE>BAEZ4ECEERE
control was lost at the date of disposal: BDH :
Cash and bank balances & RIRITHFER 993
Property, plant and equipment W - BE K& 1,038
Amounts due from customers for contract work EWEF A A TiEFIE 17,560
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 BR 3 M E At B U Z 08 11,718
Other payables and accrued charges Hith et F0E R TE IR E A (28,758)
Amounts due to customers for contract work EREEA#ITIRIIE (21)
Amounts due to the Group B AR B FRIE (12,227)
Net liabilities disposed of HEZAEEE (9,697)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: & — R MR T
Consideration received BUERE 2,000
Net liabilities disposed of HEZaEFE 9,697
Non-controlling interests FEPE R (3,393)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect R BB R Il iR B AR AE = T
of net liabilities of the subsidiary reclassified NEREEZHBARBEFE
from equity to profit or loss on loss of control M R E N =58
of the subsidiary 4,055
Gain on disposal BB 12,359
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZHRERAFE .
Consideration received in cash and cash WER S RIRESEEBWRE
equivalents 2,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of B HEZRERESEEY (993)
1,007
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The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations
and in its investment activities. The financial risks include
market risk (including foreign currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its financial risk and takes actions to mitigate such risk.
The Group adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and seeks to limit the Group’s exposure to
these risks to a minimum. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks.

There has been no change to the type of the Group's

exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

166
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 35. BEEEBEAZEEHER
ARISING FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
The changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from AREBRpEETHESBEEHAHE
financing activities can be classified as: =3
Amounts due to
directors
EAEERIE
HK$'000
T
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—tF—H—H 15,046
Cash-flows: HEME -
Advances from directors EEEN 5,492
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 )3‘(\_% tF+—A=+—8 K
—N\§¥—H—H 20,538
Cash-flows: fﬁ%m’fg
Advances from directors EEHN 247
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—NF+ZHA=+—H 20,785
36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. BIKEKRER

AEERANEAEXBBIEF RNEKRE
AR EASR T AmMAEN KRR - 8
R B 1 5 Rk (B4R SMNE & K& F &=
Rk) - EERBRERBIERR

AEBEEGRME Rigd REREEMBR
B WERBRITENRIEARRAR - AEEE
[\ & 75 R R R T RS - B
Hﬁ$‘§l7¥<x21ﬁt—rﬂﬁmﬂz?§§*ﬁﬁ 5=

Rt RAREESEEARRZER -

REBFSRERMIERREHRRHE
BERFERRARZ TESEEE) o

UU}J
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MIKERER#)
(Continued)
36.1 Categories of financial assets and 36.1 TRIEEREBEZER
liabilities
The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated FEAMBIRRRF2Y 2 EEEY
statement of financial position relate to the following FUTHERzeREENSRAE:

categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T 7T
Financial assets TRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost ZE AT EN SR EE
— Trade receivables — R E Z RN 6,524 =
— Other receivables and — H b EUGRIA R IR S
deposits 13,864 -
— Cash and bank balances —IB & RIRITIER 27,131 =
Financial assets at FVOCI (non- RARBEFAEMEE RS
recycling) HeREE(TAIE3E)
— Unlisted private equity fund —JELMAABRERES - =
- Unlisted equity investments —JE LRI E 11,926 =
Available-for-sale financial assets At HE S REE
— Unlisted private equity fund —JELEMAABREES = =
— Unlisted equity investments —3E LRI E = -
Loans and receivables &R KW GRIE
— Trade receivables —EUE SRR = 13,507
— Other receivables and — H h pE U R I8 K iR S
deposits - 9,076
— Cash and bank balances — IR & MIBITER - 25,675
59,445 48,258
Financial liabilities cRaE
Financial liabilities measured at IR #EK AT ENLRAE
amortised cost
— Trade payables —ENESERR 572 1,140
— Other payables and accrued —HtnER B RTERE A
charges 11,566 15,091
— Amounts due to directors —ENESHE 20,785 20,538
32,923 36,769
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. MIKERER#)

(Continued)

36.2 Foreign currency risk 36.2 SNEREK
Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the 4N [ Fx 5 B BEE o 42 &) i 38 B < g
fair value or future cash flows of a financial TEZARBESZKERRREERE
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in HIREE 2 ER o NEFEAST ZIN
foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to ERBEEEEFEUET(ZET])
foreign currency risk arise from its overseas sales RARMEEZBINEE REFE -
and purchases, which are primarily denominated HEEEWIES MIEEFERH 2 ARE
in United States Dollars (“US$") and RMB. These BEEEINGEEE -

are not the functional currencies of the Group
entities to which these transactions relate.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and LASNEESAEZ SR EE N A ERK
liabilities, translated into HK$ at the closing rates, MEXRBRE ZETHT

are as follows:

USs$ RMB
ESTW AR
HK$'000 HK$°000
T T FHET
At 31 December 2018 N-—E—-NE+=-B=+—H
Cash and bank balances RE NIBITER 92 121
At 31 December 2017 HN—ZE—tE+=-HB=+—8
Cash and bank balances IB& MERITFER 1,104 127
As the rate of exchange between HK$ and US$ B A T HR 2 T [ R GI| AR E &
is controlled within a tight range, the foreign BEA - INERBITTEAN o NEE
currency risk is considered to be insignificant. TERASZARE B E o

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of
fluctuation in RMB.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

36.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of
the Group’s loss after income tax for the year and
equity in regard to an appreciation in the Group
entities’ functional currencies against RMB. These
sensitivity rates represent management’s best
assessment of the possible change in foreign
exchange rates.

BRRER &)

36.2 SMERER(E)
TRIAENAEBNRFTER %
BiERERHAEEABEEREY
LM ANRE Y GURE © S
Bl AEREHERA ST

REMRT

Sensitivity Increase Decrease in
rate in loss equity
BUBELBH BB EDED
HK$’000 HK$°000
% FE T FHET
2018 —E—N\E
RMB AR% 3% (4) (4)
2017 —T—+F
RMB AR 3% (4) (4)

The same % depreciation in the Group entities’
functional currencies against RMB would have the
same magnitude on the Group's loss for the year
and equity but of opposite effect.

AEBRBEERNEEE AR
MRLAIWEE HAEEFRA

EREEEEAARREZEERARNY
g o
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

170

36.3

36.4

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in the market
interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises
primarily from bank balances.

The exposure to interest rates for the Group's
bank balances is considered immaterial.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group's exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary
course of its operations and from its investing
activities.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for
the components of the consolidated statement of
financial position at 31 December 2018 and 2017
is the carrying amount as disclosed in note 36.1.

Management has a credit policy in place for
approving the credit limits and the exposures to
credit risk are monitored such that any outstanding
debtors are reviewed and followed up on an
ongoing basis. The Group’s policy is to deal only
with creditworthy counterparties. Payment record
of customers is closely monitored. Customers of
IT Products and Services with balances that are
more than 90 days overdue are required to settled
all outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.
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36.4
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EEER
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

36.4 Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets are written
off (i.e. derecognised) when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk
in respect of trade receivables as 8% (2017: 57%)
of the total trade receivables was due from a
customer.

Effective on 1 January 2018

(i)

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group has applied the simplified
approach to assess the ECL as prescribed
by HKFRS 9. To measure the ECL, trade
receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the past due days.
In calculating the ECL rates, the Group
considers historical elements and forward
looking elements. Assessed lifetime
ECL rate of contract assets and trade
receivables is minimal for all ageing bands
as there was no recent history of default
and continuous payments were received.
The Group determined that the ECL
allowance in respect of trade receivables
and contract assets for the year ended 31
December 2018 is minimal as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality
of the customers.

36. IKREKRER &)

36.4 SERKE)

FBUEZERRANEENGIETR
HRfOR My [ s i 35 ( BV BB RERR) ©

AEERWESRREFEE TETF
FEERR - BEWKESEREER
8% (ZE—+%F: 57%))%)\5/\\\*%

B -

R-ZF-—NF-A—HAEK

(i)

JEWE BRI R A KB E

RIEE BN EREREAFE
SRHETE - ASEBEAGIL
TR TEEEEEE -
BIrEREHEEEE - Bl
BHERARENEECRE
H£ZEERBRSH LB HL
HolE - RETEREEER
BRE  AEEEEELTT
ENRATEMTE - BRI
SRE BRI HFHES N
;oM EES ERKES
HEEREWRE SRR
GEMEEREXER - &
EZE - N\F+ZA=1+—
BIEFE  AREFNEE
BEVWEEAEL  AEE
REWESERAMRANEE
BRNEHEEBBRER

oo
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

172

(Continued)

36.4 Credit risk (Continued)

Effective on 1 January 2018 (Continued)

(if)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets measured at
amortised cost include other receivables
and deposits (excluding prepayments and
value-added tax recoverable) and cash
and bank balances. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the
Group would make periodic collective and
individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables and deposits based
on historical settlement records and past
experience as well as current external
information. Other monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In these
regards, the credit risk of other receivables
and deposits are considered to be low.

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
other receivables amounted to HK$126,000
were individually impaired in full. Except
for these balances in other receivables, the
Group has assessed that the ECL for other
receivables and deposits are minimal under
the 12-months ECL method as there is no
significant increase in credit risk on these
other receivables and deposits since initial
recognition and the risk of default is low
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The credit risk for bank balances is
considered to be insignificant because the
counterparties are reputable banks with
high quality external credit ratings.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

36.5

36.6

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade and other payables, and also in respect of
its cash flow management. The Group's objective
is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group's
remaining contractual maturities for its financial
liabilities will be either on demand or within one
year. The carrying amounts of its financial liabilities
approximate their contractual undiscounted cash
flow.

Fair value measurements of financial

instruments

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value in the consolidated statement of financial
position are grouped into three levels of a fair
value hierarchy. The three levels are defined
based on the observability of significant inputs to
the measurements, as follows:

° Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets and liabilities.

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly.

o Level 3: unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

36. IKREKRER &)

36.5

36.6

T\ FFHR HEERERERAR

B R

MEN IR RS R AN R B RBEETTIE
BRNBRCHEMEHEELERN
TRAGHEBETZAR - A&H
AR E e B 5 IR 3N HAth A R
BEUARHEBRGREEEMAR R
R - AREZ BREERERR
BEENEEKRF - LinREEH
REHRBESHFK -

R-B-—NFR-_Z—tF+_-H
=t—HB AREZBEENA
HER TR HIR G AR E R —F
N AEETRAENREERL
BRRBBENRERENRE °

TRMTAENQIAEETE

REPBRARFREIAEENE
MEREERABANDRAAEE
BRO=(EEHR - —@EASHRERET
EEXBABBHNABERREEESR
L

. F—&: HREERAER
AR IHARE CREFHE)
. F_M REERABER

S EABRNEARE
(F—RABIRARERIN) -

. F=M - BERABENEZX
BRGARE -
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36.

174

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

36.6 Fair value measurements of financial

instruments (Continued)

36.6

EERER )

EMITENAREETEE)

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which EHEMEEXBREBNER
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its MARABEERANSFR 75%7\
entirety based on the lowest level of input that HAABEMEATEARENR
is significant to the fair value measurement. The ESHRBAZR - RAABENE
financial assets measured at fair value are grouped MEMAERAAABEERIT:
into the fair value hierarchy as follows:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— FIHR E=R et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
T T FHETT T
As at 31 December 2018 R-B-—NE+=
A=+—8H
Financial assets at FVOCI BAREEGFAR
(non-recycling) 2 mER SN S
A& E (el &
)
— Unlisted private equity —FELEIFRAR
fund ZHE - - - -
— Unlisted equity —IE LR AR
investments & - - 11,926 11,926
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZZE—tF
+=A=t+-—8H
Available-for-sale financial AHEEESRE
assets, at fair value = RARE
(=]
— Unlisted private equity —JEETAARR
fund ZHESE - - -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

36.6 Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of the

EERER )

366 TRITEMNAABENEE)

DEBANEBEERE=FHNLE

Group's financial instruments classified within EemTANKEESRNAT -
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows:
As at
31 December
2018
R=ZE-—N\F
+=RA=+—H
HK$'000
T
Unlisted equity investments ELETRARE
Fair value at 1 January upon adoption RN E AN BRELENFESRERN—HA—AR
of HKFRS 9 (note 3) R BEMHES) 12,545
Reclassification of remaining interest in
Excel HK from interests in RSB BRI ER T = AR B = A 58
associate to financial asset at FVOCI ﬁ%mi%ﬁ’\*ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁfﬁﬂr)\ﬁi\m%
(non-recycling) (note 15) AW aE E (e 8l88) (FisE15) 860
Fair value loss recognised in other
comprehensive income REMEEREERH AL EBEEE (439)
Sales proceeds (note 17(b)) SHEPTS I (FI5E17(b)) (1,040)
Fair value at 31 December R+=—A=+—HWMARERE 11,926

Fair value loss on unlisted equity investments
is recognised in other comprehensive income
and included under “Fair value reserve - non-
recycling”.

FLEMERAREN A BEEBEER
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

36.6 Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

The fair value of the unlisted equity investments
and unlisted private equity fund is measured
using valuation techniques with reference to
the net asset value. The directors believe that
the change in fair value (which is included in
other comprehensive income) derived from the
valuation technique is reasonable and is the most
appropriate value at the end of the reporting
period.

There have been no transfers into or out of Level
3 during the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
nil).

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives are to
ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide an adequate return for shareholders by
pricing goods and services commensurately with the
level of risks.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of
changes in economic conditions. In order to adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares and
raises new debt financing.
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